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Independent Auditor's Report
B NS

KPMG

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of City University of Hong Kong (“the University”) and its subsidiaries
(together “the Group”) set out on pages 6 to112, which comprise the consolidated and University Statements of Financial Position
as at 30 June 2024, the consolidated and University Statements of Comprehensive Income, the consolidated and University
Statements of Changes in Funds and the consolidated and University Cash Flow Statements for the year then ended and notes
to the consolidated financial statements, comprising material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group and the
University as at 30 June 2024 and of the Group’s and the University’s financial performance and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA").

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“the Code”) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of the Council for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Council of the University is responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and for such internal control as the Council determines is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Council is responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the Council either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Council is assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging its responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is
made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 20 of City University of Hong Kong Ordinance (Cap. 1132), and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
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Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the Council.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Council’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence and, where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

10 October 2024
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Statement of Comprehensive Income

EHEREE

For the Year Ended 30 June 2024

BlZE 20246 A30H IFFE
Note The Group K28 The University X2
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (A FETat) Kt 2024 2023 2024 2023
Income L/ON
Government Subventions BT AR 2 3,515,495 3,267,460 3,515,495 3,267,460
Tuition and Other Fees 3= Jra-iufl g 3 2,195,904 2,081,300 2,195,904 2,081,300
Donations and Benefactions BB 4 105,530 83,866 105,530 83,876
Interest and Net Investment Returns  FI| B K F3% & B3R 5 399,780 6,691 421,866 9,373
Auxiliary Services HIEARTS 6 183,547 171,575 175,879 160,645
Other Income EHAWA 7 380,051 307,854 157,575 113,890
6,780,307 5,918,746 6,572,249 5,716,544
Expenditure X 8
Learning and Research A MR
Instruction and Research HERE 3,748,936 3,455,147 3,759,128 3,478,479
Library B 134,062 125,971 134,062 125,971
Central Computing Facilities R BRI 224,829 241,367 224,829 241,367
Other Academic Services H A R 299,355 261,707 299,355 261,707
Institutional Support HELIE
Management and General BEER—WKRIER 505,485 457,547 501,359 452,741
Premises and Related Expenses RERBHERAXZ 1,072,315 1,089,240 1,061,789 1,078,454
Student and General B4R
Education Services BB R 360,606 373,291 360,606 373,291
Other Activities HAiEE 271,784 263,453 35,035 32,674
6,617,372 6,267,723 6,376,163 6,044,684
Surplus/(Deficit) from Operation  &ER&x  (Ei8) 162,935 (348,977) 196,086 (328,140)
Finance Costs W58 A (22,081) (17,254) (21,269) (16,350)
Share of profit of a Joint Venture EEE&EARIFE 1,322 900 — —
Surplus/(Deficit) before Taxation MELATE R (E51E) 142,176 (365,331) 174,817 (344,490)
Tax Credit/(Tax Expense) Tk (FRIEXH) 9 2,963 2,005 (159) (145)
Surplus/(Deficit) for the Year RNEERH(FR) 145,139 (363,326) 174,658 (344,635)
Other Comprehensive Income Hh2mEk =
Item that may be Reclassified HeREEs
Subsequently to Surplus B#HENIER
or Deficit
Exchange Differences on BMEFEBHRIN
Translation of Operations BB
outside Hong Kong & X ZRE (371) (5,215) — —
Other Comprehensive Income BEE
for the Year Hip 2 mEUk (371) (5,215) — —
Total Comprehensive Income BEE
for the Year 2HE R REE 144,768 (368,541) 174,658 (344,635)
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Statement of Comprehensive Income &MUk &

The Group K 2%

The University X2

Note

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (A FETat) Kt 2024 2023 2024 2023
Surplus/(Deficit) for the Year BRAEEE KB

Attributable to the Group/ NEERH(FR)

the University transfer to/(from): E®Z (H):
UGC Funds HEEHESD 11 17,161 (235,821) 17,161 (235,821)
Restricted Fund for Research MEEHES 12 24,259 (20,573) 24,259 (20,573)
Other Funds EmmES 13 103,719 (106,932) 133,238 (88,241)
Surplus/(Deficit) for the Year NEERS(FE) 145,139 (363,326) 174,658 (344,635)
Total Comprehensive Income BRAERE KEy

Attributable to the Group/ ZHEKEEEE

the University transfer to/(from): &&= (H) :
UGC Funds HEGHES 11 17,161 (235,821) 17,161 (235,821)
Restricted Fund for Research MAEAES 12 24,259 (20,573) 24,259 (20,573)
Other Funds HihE 13 103,348 (112,147) 133,238 (88,241)
Total Comprehensive Income BEE

for the Year ZHEKEEE 144,768 (368,541) 174,658 (344,635)

The notes on pages 14 to 112 form part of these financial statements.

FIENE VA EE 112 B2 RAMBIRKRZ —2D
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Statement of Financial Position

B 355K R R

As at 30 June 2024

720246 A30H
Note The Group K28 The University X2
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (A FETat) Kt 2024 2023 2024 2023
Non-current Assets FRBEE
Investment Properties, Other Property, && %% « EiiRE -

Plant and Equipment R R R 14 7,762,492 6,708,726 7,668,746 6,602,837
Intangible Assets B EE 15 65,302 65,302 — —
Goodwill Bk 16 33,471 33,471 — —
Investments "E 17 122,804 109,914 5,626 5,745
Investments in Subsidiaries MEARIRE 18 — — 367,816 340,471
Interest in a Joint Venture BE QAR 19 52,015 50,693 — —
Accounts Receivable, Prepayments FEUIR R « TEAT IR

and Others T E A 21 23,633 24,258 21,287 22,082
Deferred Tax Assets FEEFIBEE 22(b) 3,969 847 — —

8,063,686 6,993,211 8,063,475 6,971,135
Current Assets RBEE
Investments "E 17 6,211,234 7,777,325 6,211,234 7,777,325
Loans Receivable ERE R 20 117,380 124,690 135,380 142,690
Accounts Receivable, Prepayments FEUIR R« TERTIRK

and Others N E Aty 21 1,065,614 578,525 1,073,592 581,172
Tax recoverable AT UL B FR SR 22(a) 86 40 — —
Inventories e 23 8,304 8,013 422 732
Cash and Bank Deposits Be RIFTEX 24 1,089,351 635,589 1,000,072 562,423

8,491,969 9,124,182 8,420,700 9,064,342
Current Liabilities REAE
Deferred Income IREEW A 25 1,089,274 2,056,596 1,089,274 2,056,596
Accounts Payable and Accruals FEFTIRFK & FERT & 26 1,229,854 1,220,692 1,214,430 1,204,584
Contract Liabilities aREaE 27 721,964 505,609 717,281 501,988
Provision for Employee Benefits & Bt 1 & s 28 682,103 663,805 672,546 654,718
Loans and Borrowings BERREE 30 100,000 100,000 100,000 121,096
Lease Liabilities HEBE 31 23,704 49,343 18,919 45,099
3,846,899 4,596,045 3,812,450 4,584,081
Net Current Assets B EEFE 4,645,070 4,528,137 4608250 4,480,261
Total Assets less Current EEAER
Liabilities REBaE 12,708,756 11,521,348 12,671,725 11,451,396
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Statement of Financial Position Bf#ikn &

The Group K 2%

The University X2

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (A FETat) Iﬂ\;;:; 2024 2023 2024 2023
Non-current Liabilities FkRBEE
Deferred Tax Liabilities RERIAEE 22(b) 10,775 10,775 — —
Deferred Income IRIEUA 25 1,437,274 1,261,057 1,437,274 1,261,057
Accounts Payable and Accruals FEfTIR R R FEET & 26 73,876 122,854 73,876 122,854
Provision for Employee Benefits EERF B HE 28 65,126 61,742 65,126 61,742
Lease Liabilities HEBE 31 25,383 19,687 17,454 8,727
Provision for Reinstatement Costs BIRRAR B 4,340 4,340 — —
1,616,774 1,480,455 1,593,730 1,454,380
Deferred Capital Funds BELEEXRES 32 4,496,663 3,590,342 4,496,663 3,590,342
Net Assets EEFE 6,595,319 6,450,551 6,581,332 6,406,674
Represented By: ELRE
UGC Funds HEGES 11 1,496,058 1,478,897 1,496,088 1,478,927
Restricted Fund for Research MRERESR 12 907,768 865,912 907,768 865,912
Other Funds HihE e 13 4,191,493 4,105,742 4,177,476 4,061,835
Total Funds HEemE 6,595,319 6,450,551 6,581,332 6,406,674

Approved and authorised for issue by the Council on 10 October 2024.

WEER 2024510 510 BAZEFFAI3EH -

Lester Garson Huang, SBS, JP, Chairman of the Council
BEM SBS P RESF/E

Freddy Boey Yin-chiang, President

BEE KK

The notes on pages 14 to 112 form part of these financial statements.

FIERE V14 EE112 EZMERAMBIHRERZ —D °

Charles Chin Ying-on, Treasurer

BEZ A&

Maggie Chau Choi-ying, Director of Finance

BRE  MEEER
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Statement of Changes in Funds

ESESHX

For the Year Ended 30 June 2024

BHZE2024F6 A30HIEFE
The Group K2 &g
Restricted
Fund for
UGC Funds Research Other Funds Total
Note 11 Note 12 Note 13
HEGES WREAED HitES et

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (X FEat) BtaE 11 et 12 Mat13
Balance at 1 July 2022 202278 18&8% 1,714,689 862,702 4,241,701 6,819,092
Deficit for the Year AEEEIE (235,821) (20,573) (106,932) (363,326)
Other Comprehensive Income HEa 2wl — — (5,215) (5,215)
Total Comprehensive Income REE

for the Year 2H K EARE (235,821) (20,573) (112,147) (368,541)
Inter-Fund Transfers HESwER 29 23,783 (23,812) —
Balance at 30 June 2023 20236 A30H K

and 1 July 2023 202371 H&8 1,478,897 865,912 4,105,742 6,450,551
Surplus for the Year AEE R 17,161 24,259 103,719 145,139
Other Comprehensive Income Hibh2mEiiss — — (371) (371)
Total Comprehensive Income REE

for the Year AW R 17,161 24,259 103,348 144,768
Inter-Fund Transfers He i — 17,597 (17,597) —
Balance at 30 June 2024 20246 A30 A& 1,496,058 907,768 4,191,493 6,595,319

170  City University of Hong Kong &3 m A2




Statement of Changes in Fund E£E#{ %

The University X2

Restricted
Fund for
UGC Funds Research Other Funds Total
Note 11 Note 12 Note 13
BEGEEE WMEREAES HitE & Mt
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LAFETEt) Htat11 Mtat12 Mtat13
Balance at 1 July 2022 2022F7 A1 &&% 1,714,748 862,605 4,173,956 6,751,309
Total Comprehensive Income NS
for the Year MR EEE (235,821) (20,573) (88,241) (344,635)
Inter-Fund Transfers HEowi — 23,880 (23,880) —
Balance at 30 June 2023 20236 HA30A K
and 1 July 2023 20237 B 1848 1,478,927 865,912 4,061,835 6,406,674
Total Comprehensive Income REE
for the Year el Gt E 17,161 24,259 133,238 174,658
Inter-Fund Transfers AR — 17,597 (17,597) —
Balance at 30 June 2024 2024% 6 A30 A&k 1,496,088 907,768 4,177,476 6,581,332
The notes on pages 14 to 112 form part of these financial statements.
HIEREABZ 1N BT ARSBRET 2 —5 5 -
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Cash Flow Statement

RERER

For the Year Ended 30 June 2024

BHZE2024F6 A30HIEFE

Note The Group K28 The University X2
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (XFEat) Bt 2024 2023 2024 2023
Operating Activities BETEE
Surplus/(Defict) before Taxation BELATE R (E518) 142,176 (365,331) 174,817 (344,490)
Adjustments for: FARIER -

Interest Income FBUA 5 (121,761) (104,191) (122,896) (105,111)

Dividend Income iR S A 5 (51,287) (28,780) (51,287) (28,780)

Realised Losses on Investments HEMNEEREE 5 6,472 307,944 5,998 307,944

Unrealised Gains on Investments RENREBR W 5 (253,800) (183,929) (253,800) (183,929)

Fair Value Losses HMigEm

on Other Investments RABEEIE 5 20,596 2,265 119 503

Finance Costs HMBER 22,081 17,254 21,269 16,350

Share of Profit of a Joint Venture EiEEE AR &R (1,322) (900) — —

Impairment Losses on HIEAMB AR

Investments in Subsidiaries BEEE — — 4,655 6,813

Grants Transferred from BHEEEARAES 2

Deferred Capital Funds B 32 (419,158) (394,902) (419,158) (394,902)
Depreciation of Investment KEMERAMRE -

Properties and Other Property, MR RREZ

Plant and Equipment e 14 584,983 583,771 567,647 563,137
Losses on Disposals of HIE RS R

Plant and Equipment &8 1,728 1,102 1,748 1,089
Amortisation of Intangible Assets | EENEE 15 — 613 — —
Reversal of Impairment Losses FEUIR SR8 R (E R 1

on Accounts Receivable o 21(a) (94) (198) — —

Gains on Foreign Exchange TE 5 W e 1) (248) — (1,148)
Operating Deficit before Changes &EES#EAI2

in Working Capital BEEFR (69,387) (165,530) (70,888) (162,524)
Decrease in Staff Loans Receivable FEURER B B 2R 7.310 7,730 7,310 7,730
Increase in Accounts Receivable, FEURIR SR ~ TAR IR &

Prepayments and Others Htth 238 (565,075) (78,929) (563,948) (83,956)
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories FEz (#hm) R (291) 1,099 310 64
Net (Increase)/Decrease in Amounts  JEURHIE A RFIE 2

Due from Subsidiaries F () R — — (3.221) 11,090
Increase in Deferred Income IRAEWA Z 3G 0 382,552 478,764 382,552 478,764
Increase in Accounts Payable and R R ETER

Accruals N 23,309 61,092 22,477 64,306
Increase in Contract Liabilities BHBEZHEI 216,355 63,158 215,293 62,057
Increase/(Decrease) in Provision EEENEE

for Employee Benefits #mn, CRd) 21,682 (27,585) 21,212 (25,355)
Increase/(Decrease) in Provision BREANEEZ

for Reinstatement Costs #n, CRid) — 1,527 — (1,473)
Cash Generated BETBELEZ

from Operating Activities & 16,455 341,326 11,097 350,703
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Cash Flow Statement H& 7R &

Note The Group X2%g The University X2

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (A FETat) Kt 2024 2023 2024 2023
Net Hong Kong Profits Tax Paid B EENEHFE 22(a) (192) (1,619) (146) (135)
Net China Enterprise BRI

Income Tax Paid FriSHi 8 22(a) (13) (10) (13) (10)
Net Cash Generated from BETBRELEZ

Operating Activities BeF8E 16,250 339,697 10,938 350,558
Investing Activities REFTH
Net Cash Received on Sale and BEREFKZ

Purchase of Investments e F5E 1,735,694 250,868 1,769,654 312,368
Dividends and Interest Income Bz RER

Received FEWA 204,522 150,207 203,991 151,545
Decrease in Time Deposit [REBAA AEE=EAZ

with Original Maturity EHFRZ

over Three Months Vo 1,389 238,611 — 230,000
Payments for Additions to Property, 18 ERE - #es MR E

Plant and Equipment Frs2 7 2 38 (1,498,377)  (1,385,135) (1,495,393)  (1,378,058)
Proceeds from Disposals of HE MRS R

Plant and Equipment FriS 5018 383 249 363 249
Capital Contribution to a Subsidiary R —MEB QR EIEE — — (32,000) (71,000)
Net Cash Generated from/(Used in) REEEFESE, (FH)

Investing Activities ZHEFE 443,611 (745,200) 446,615 (754,896)

Financing Activities & SEE
Net Grants and Donations Received ﬁﬁf’ﬁi BERE - #BER

for Additions to Property, sEE R

Plant and Equipment T NE=EN 53,214 58,155 53,214 58,155
Capital Element of Lease Rentals Paid EfHEEHRESHERKD  24(b) (53,253) (50,083) (48,163) (46,202)
Interest Element of Lease Rentals Paid B fHEEMHSHFEKD  24(0) (1,708) (2,265) (896) (1,614)
Interest Paid for Bank Loans BEATIRITERFE 24(b) (2,963) (2,475) (2,963) (2,475)
Repayment of Loan from a Subsidiary EE — B ARNER — — (21,096) —
Net Cash (Used in)/Generated MEEEAT (ER) EE

from Financing Activities ZHREEHE (4,710) 3,332 (19,904) 7,864
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash RERBESEEYZ

and Cash Equivalents TR Of) 455,151 (402,171) 437,649 (396,474)
Cash and Cash Equivalents ReRE2EEYZ

at the Beginning of the Year FONEE 634,200 1,036,371 562,423 958,897
Cash and Cash Equivalents ReRRLEEY=Z

at the End of the Year FRERF 24(a) 1,089,351 634,200 1,000,072 562,423

The notes on pages 14 to 112 form part of these financial statements.

FIEW14BE 112 B 2T ARz 2 — 25
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B EE AR M A

(a)

(a)

14

Material Accounting Policies

EFRERHBE

Statement of Compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs"), which is a collective term that includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") and accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong. These financial statements also
comply with the Statement of Recommended Practice (“SORP") for the UGC-funded Institutions and the Costs Allocation
Guidelines for UGC-funded and non-UGC funded activities (“CAGs") issued by the University Grants Committee (“UGC")
in Hong Kong. Material accounting policies adopted by the University and its subsidiaries (collectively “the Group”) are
disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain amendments to HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group and the University. None of these developments have had a material effect on how the
Group’s and the University’s results and financial position for the current or prior periods have been prepared or presented.
The Group and the University have not applied any new standard or interpretation that is not effective for the current
accounting period.

amEn

AP BREERBABERN(EEVMBRELEN ([BEMHRELER])NAERE - [BEMBREEL] S
T HhBEhEERtM ARG ERNER [ FEMBHREEL ] (FEGFHE) ([FESFER]) (&
B)REERARBEHRA - AMBHBRTNT AT ENABHEEDZEG ([HER ) BHN(HRESEPRRNESR
EAD([ZZER D WRERBESENEIBRESENRDNRADEES - ATEAEREKBAR ([HE[ K2
BR)RANTIZGFEEK -

BRI EASBEM T ETBEMHREER ETAR - ZFEI A ERBERRABAREHFEIRERSIZAR
Ao RBBBMABEAP B REANRNFREIARMFEEE RV BN ANEREIIINE TN - BRI BELEEAF
& RERERAREW KRR T E R ST HRE R R EB ] LR N2 -
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf ##R &K K5

(a)

(a)

Material Accounting Policies (continued)

FESFHE @

Statement of Compliance (continued)

In June 2022 the Hong Kong SAR Government (the “Government”) gazetted the Hong Kong Employment and Retirement
Schemes Legislation (Offsetting Arrangement) (Amendment) Ordinance 2022 (the “Amendment Ordinance”), which will
come into effect from 1 May 2025 (the “Transition Date”). Once the Amendment Ordinance takes effect, an employer
can no longer use any of the accrued benefits derived from its mandatory contributions to mandatory provident fund
(“MPF") scheme to reduce the long service payment (“LSP") in respect of an employee’s service from the Transition Date
(the abolition of the “offsetting mechanism”). In addition, the LSP in respect of the service before the Transition Date will
be calculated based on the employee’s monthly salary immediately before the Transition Date and the years of service up
to that date.

In July 2023, the HKICPA published “Accounting implications of the abolition of the MPF-LSP offsetting mechanism in
Hong Kong” that provides accounting guidance relating to the offsetting mechanism and the abolition of the mechanism.
In particular, the guidance indicates that entities may account for the accrued benefits derived from mandatory MPF
contributions that are expected to be used to reduce the LSP payable to an employee as deemed contributions by that
employee towards the LSP.

However, applying this approach, upon the enactment of the Amendment Ordinance in June 2022, it is no longer permissible
to apply the practical expedient in paragraph 93(b) of HKAS 19 that previously allowed such deemed contributions to be
recognised as reduction of service cost (negative service cost) in the period the contributions were made; instead these
deemed contributions should be attributed to periods of service in the same manner as the gross LSP benefit.

To better reflect the substance of the abolition of the offsetting mechanism, the Group and the University have changed
their accounting policy in connection with its LSP liability and has applied the above HKICPA guidance retrospectively. The
cessation of applying the practical expedient in paragraph 93(b) of HKAS 19 in conjunction with the enactment of the
Amendment Ordinance does not have a material impact in these financial statements.

AREH @)

202246 A - HEARKERBA (B ]) £FHmTIE T €2022 FHERR MERFTEVED] (RIS HE) (ERT) 5&H1) ([ERT &
B11) - ZA&GIHR2025F5 A1 R (DBAEB R ) A% - —BEFTERPDER - BEEETeeBEARERTERES ([58
B )BT HARMEENZREE S - OB BIBE B (BUE [ HE#EH ) sHEBNRBE M N RARE 2
(TRHBRBE ) - I - BUBR B MR REME - RERBSHRIZESEZZBK B AT A HLREEZ A HNR
BEERHE

20237 A - EEGFEAGRMH T(EAIURRBES EHKHINEFFE)  BEERIMBUEZEH RIS &5l - A
BME - %EsIEL - BRQF RGBT BB MR E S EH st ATRRARE D BN G RE B RBRG
ToED - BR%EEHRARBEAHER -

A WBERETDE - EUEFTIRPID N 2022 F 6 ABEMIK - HEAEHERE19RFEBO BTN EREERLE AER
FHER - BDE R R ULARAR AR B R AR D IR AR (A IREAA) © MR - LB EH R L B R H IR
EHEBRMARNT X RENZIREH -

ATERRIVEEHRHINEEYE  ABERRABEERHAMRERH B CHEHEE - LB PEA LR ES
GAMAGNES o FLERAEEETHERISE 19955 0300) RFT MM EBREEHREUSETIRE)D MBI - WA BRR
UEELEAHE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements 8% 3% K &

(b)

(b)

16

Material Accounting Policies (continued)

EEBE @

Basis of Preparation of the Financial Statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2024 comprise the University and its subsidiaries (together
referred to as the “Group”) and the Group’s interest in a joint venture.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial statements is the historical cost basis except as otherwise
stated in the accounting policies set out below:

— Other Investments in Debt and Equity Securities (note 1(e)); and
— Derivative Financial Instruments (note 1(f)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires the management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial statements and
major sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 37.

B HRRNERELE
/:l\ﬁﬁ%#&% EHE2024F6 A0R L FEABREMBAR (—ERMBIKEER]) RABERBN —GE QAN

o

w3
E\I

BRI XA SR BERSN - AR R AR L NAMERREESE
— HMWEBRRNESRE (Hiti1E) &
— PDIEERIA(MEEI11)) -

ERIBAVWHHRELA ] ERBERRYFHMEE - AELHE - AFAERE - MELA e S BRRNERNLE
E - BE WANSHNRERBEENTE - GLAHNERRIEREAEERMNEEERBR THRSEENZIA
HiEAREHN  HARBR T RERBEORECEEINKSNEERE BIREERMIEDHENER - BRERATRE
BEFFRR -

BLMAETRERRSFENAER - MRGFHEFNETETEX B - AR EFESEZHRNER - MRERTH
ERTMAREIES B E - RIFEEHE AT a0 BRI A R SR AR T IARERR

EEEEERBBMEREER | HUEHRE MO ZTZEERRREERTHEE O ERIELHE AR F
37 ©
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf ##R &K K5

()

(d)

(o)

(d)

Material Accounting Policies (continued)

EEBE @

Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate financial statements of the Group made up to the end of the reporting
period. The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the Consolidated Statement
of Comprehensive Income from the date of their acquisition or to the date of disposal, as appropriate. All significant
transactions and balances between the University and its subsidiaries are eliminated on consolidation.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. The
financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date on which control
commences until the date on which control ceases.

Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised income and expenses (except for foreign currency
transaction gains or losses) arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full when preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised
gains but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

In the University’s Statement of Financial Position, investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less impairment losses (see
note 1(j)(ii)), unless the investments are classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified as held
for sale).

ZaE%E

RAVBRRERAZEREEGENRNYBERR - AFEREAXLEZHBARNES  WKBREXELER
1k BWEE AR AR A 2 E W %:z REHEMERBZHAEEAR S MR REUR S ISR o

KB AT

MERRREARE
ZFBEH - AWhe
B AR

RETHcEE EASRBHRERBHIGE REASREENIERFZERELHEZE
ERERINFEZEL®R - WBARMPBHERBRSEHIRE AESZENRRIEZ ABEELRE

REEERBERNRE KHEBRER - ARRAKSEBARRXZAELENARERBAMI L (ONER B BRI -
BERBRAMBHRRFZEIE - RARBEBANRXZMELNRERBIRNEHETZERER AR - BEEE
POSBEBBRERERR

KB A BMIRE IR EREBREERNSNMBARKRF IR (ZIZE10)0) - FRIFRERBRRFELE (8
RERBREARHELENDRIELEER) -
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(e)

(e)

18

Material Accounting Policies (continued)

FESFHE @

Other Investments in Debt and Equity Securities

The Group's policies for investments in debt and equity securities, other than investments in subsidiaries and an interest in
a joint venture, are set out below.

Investments in debt and equity securities are recognised/derecognised on the date the Group commits to purchase/sell the
investments. The investments are initially stated at fair value plus directly attributable transaction costs, except for those
investments measured at fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL") for which transaction costs are recognised directly in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income. For an explanation of how the Group determines fair value of financial instruments,
see note 36(f). These investments are subsequently accounted for as follows, depending on their classification.

(i) Aninvestment in equity securities is classified as FVPL unless the equity investment is not held for trading purposes and
on initial recognition of the investment, the Group makes an irrevocable election to designate the investment of fair
value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) (non-recycling) such that subsequent changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income. Such elections are made on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but may
only be made if the investment meets the definition of equity from the issuer’s perspective. If such election is made
for a particular investment, at the time of disposal, the amount accumulated in the fair value reserve (non-recycling)
is transferred to Other Funds and not recycled through the Statement of Comprehensive Income. Dividends from an
investment in equity securities, irrespective of whether they are classified as FVPL or FVOCI, are recognised in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income in accordance with the policy set out in note 7(q)(iv).

(i) Non-equity investments held for the collection of contractual cash flows which represents solely payment of principal
and interest are measured at amortised cost. Interest income from the investment is calculated using the effective
interest method (see note 1(q)(iii)). Debt securities measured at amortised cost are assessed for expected credit losses
("ECLs") in accordance with policy set out in note 1(j)(i).

(i)  Non-equity investments held by the Group are classified as FVPL when the contractual cash flows of the investments
do not represent solely payments of principal and interest. Changes in fair value of the investments (including interest)
are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Hin G RIRBEFIRE
REBBUNERMBRNOEFRENBER (RMBRRNRERGER AR T

BERBRNBESREDFINAREREAREA ELREE ARRBUEER - REVBEAABEMEZEERZSK
AR - R ZGRABEREZERSEXRTHRIANALABESELEBBH ABENRERI - EAABERUANETE
TRTANAAEE  FLHENE36(f) - ZFREERZEATHAAR - BFESEME

() BHFREPBBRARABEFELEEDHFABE  BIZABHFRELIFRRZENMFHE - ARZAREY)
IFERN  AEBRRERETZERENAAEEAEEEEHF AL 2K (TRAIERER) - AEERNHR
ABEZPNEMEERETER - IhFEEDENZETAEL - BEEZARENTAHTARTOEREER
HAETT - MRA/FEREMBULIRE  AELER  ARBERE (THERER) PRENSESBREHR
fEE  MAEREERERELD - RODFFRENRE - ERER SR EEFELEZHT AR - A
NRBEFEEEESH AR MEEWE - HRRAE 1Q)v) TEBRNEEmRERTHER

(i) REBDEARERE - EEEASMNNEMHANERNIRESRBHKATE - TRESKOFNEWASKAE
RN ROERTE (B ML 1(q)iil)) ° AEE SRR AR B BB 2R RM AT 1)) PRl BRI AR EERR -

(i) BARBERFBEIBNBFREBENANRERIBIEMLBRASMNEFIE  ZREBRB KRB RARS
BEEAHEZH B - ZREBENAAEBEEZY (BEMNE) REERERTHER -
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()

(9)

)

(9)

Material Accounting Policies (continued)

FESFHE @

Derivative Financial Instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at fair value. At the end of each reporting period the fair value is
remeasured. The gain or loss on remeasurement to fair value is recognised immediately in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income.

Investment Properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are owned or held under a leasehold interest to earn rental income
and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are stated in the Statement of Financial Position at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
loss (see note 1(j)(ii)). Any gain or loss arising from the retirement or disposal of an investment property is recognised in
the Statement of Comprehensive Income. Rental income from investment properties is accounted for as described in note

1(q)(vi).

When the University holds a property interest under a lease to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, the interest
is classified and accounted for as an investment property on a property-by-property basis.

Depreciation charge is calculated using the straight-line method to write off the cost of investment properties, less their
estimated residual values, if any, over their estimated useful lives. Estimated useful lives for investment properties are the
same as those for buildings situated on leasehold land as shown in note 7(h).

TTEEmMTA

ITEESRMT A EE AR EBAR -HARBEENSFEEHRENTE - AEENERSNBN2E NSRRI’
2,

REME

REMFEELIWR, SETFRERDESRARREAREE  EMEATAEBEREFRIFEEERES -
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(h)

(h)

20

Material Accounting Policies (continued)

EEBE @

Other Property, Plant and Equipment

Other property, plant and equipment of the Group and the University other than construction in progress, are stated in the
Statement of Financial Position at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see note 1(j)(ii)), including:

— right-of-use assets arising from leases over leasehold properties where the Group or the University is not the registered
owner of the property interest;

— items of plant and equipment, including right-of-use assets arising from leases of underlying plant and equipment;
— interest in leasehold land where the Group or the University is the registered owner of the property interest;

— buildings held for own use which are situated on leasehold land, where the fair value of the buildings could be
measured separately from the fair value of the leasehold land at the inception of the lease; and

— other items of plant and equipment.

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and equipment includes the cost of materials, direct labour, the initial
estimate, where relevant, of the costs of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on which they are
located. The cost of other items of plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use.

Items may be produced while bringing an item of property, plant and equipment to the location and condition necessary
for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. The proceeds from selling any such items and
the related costs are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

The fair values of donations relating to property, plant and equipment at the time of receipt are deemed as the costs of
the related assets.
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(h)

(h)

Material Accounting Policies (continued)

EEBE @

Other Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)

Subsequent expenditure relating to property, plant and equipment that has already been recognised and put into operation
is added to the carrying amount of the asset when it is probable that future economic benefits, in excess of the originally
assessed standard of performance of the existing asset, will flow to the Group. All other subsequent expenditure, such as
repairs and maintenance, is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment are determined as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income on the date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual value,
if any, using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives as follows:

— Interest in leasehold land held for own use is depreciated over the shorter of the unexpired term of the lease or 50 years.

— Buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated over the shorter of the unexpired term of the lease and their
estimated useful lives, but no more than 50 years after the date of completion.

— Building Services (including installation of equipment and lifts in the buildings) are depreciated over the shorter of the
unexpired term of the lease and their estimated useful lives, but no more than 20 years after the date of completion
where the assets are situated.

— Leasehold Improvements the shorter of unexpired terms of leases or 5 years
— Plant and Equipment 4-10 years

— Computer Equipment and Software 4-5 years

— Furniture and Fittings 5-10 years

—  Other Properties Leased for Own Use over the remaining unexpired terms of leases

HittiRE - B RRE (&
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(h)
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(h)
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Material Accounting Policies (continued)

EEBE @

Other Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated on a
reasonable basis between the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual
values are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if appropriate.

Construction in progress represents buildings and other property, plant and equipment under construction and is stated
at cost less any impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Construction in progress is reclassified to buildings situated on
leasehold land when completed and ready for use.

Intangible Assets (Other than Goodwill)

Expenditure on research activities, undertaken with the prospect of gaining new scientific or technical knowledge and
understanding, is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is incurred. Expenditure on development activities is
capitalised if the product or process is technically and commercially feasible and the Group has sufficient resources and
the intention to complete development. The expenditure capitalised includes the cost of materials, direct labour and an
appropriate proportion of overheads. Capitalised development costs are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses (see note 1(j)ii)). Other development expenditure is recognised as an expense in the period in which it
is incurred.

Other intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are stated in the Statement of Financial Position at cost less
accumulated amortisation (where the estimated useful lives are finite) and impairment losses (see note 1(j)(ii)). Expenditure
on internally generated goodwill and brands is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.
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Material Accounting Policies (continued)

EEBE @

Intangible Assets (Other than Goodwill) (continued)

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income on a
straight-line basis over the assets’ estimated useful lives. The following intangible assets with finite useful lives are amortised
from the date they are available for use and their estimated useful lives are as follows:

— Capitalised Development Costs 5 years
—  Customer Relationship 2 years
— Software 5 years
— Standard Operating Procedures 4 years

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed annually.

Intangible assets are not amortised while their useful lives are assessed to be indefinite. Any conclusion that the useful life
of an intangible asset is indefinite is reviewed annually to determine whether events and circumstances continue to support
the indefinite useful life assessment for that asset. If they do not, the change in the useful life assessment from indefinite to
finite is accounted for prospectively from the date of change and in accordance with the policy for amortisation of intangible
assets with finite lives as set out above.

Subsequent expenditure on an intangible asset after its purchase or its completion is recognised as an expense when it is
incurred unless it is probable that this expenditure will enable the asset to generate future economic benefits in excess of
its originally assessed standard of performance and this expenditure can be measured and attributed to the asset reliably. If
these conditions are met, the subsequent expenditure is added to the cost of the intangible asset and amortised accordingly.
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Material Accounting Policies (continued)

FESFHE @

(j) Credit Losses and Impairment of Assets

(i) Creditlosses from financial instruments

The Group and the University recognise a loss allowance for ECLs on the following items:

— financial assets measured at amortised cost (including cash and cash equivalents, accounts and other receivables,
and loans receivable).

Other financial assets measured at fair value, including units in bond funds, equity securities measured at FVPL and
derivative financial assets, are not subject to the ECL assessment.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the present value of all expected
cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the Group and the University in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the Group and the University expect to receive).

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted using the following discount rates where the effect of discounting is
material:

— fixed-rate financial assets, trade and other receivables: effective interest rate determined at initial recognition or
an approximation thereof; and

— variable-rate financial assets: current effective interest rate.

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which the Group is
exposed to credit risk.
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1

Material Accounting Policies (continued)

FESFHE @

(j) Credit Losses and Impairment of Assets (continued)

(i) Creditlosses from financial instruments (continued)

Measurement of ECLs (continued)

In measuring ECLs, the Group and the University take into account reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort. This includes information about past events, current conditions and forecasts
of future economic conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:

— 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are expected to result from possible default events within the 12 months
after the reporting date; and

— Lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are expected to result from all possible default events over the expected lives
of the items to which the ECL model applies.

Loss allowances for staff loans, accounts and other receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs. ECLs on these financial assets are estimated based on the Group’s and the University’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors and an assessment of both the current and forecast
general economic conditions at the reporting date.

For all other financial instruments, the Group and the University recognise a loss allowance equal to 12-month ECLs
unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk of the financial instrument since initial recognition, in which
case the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.
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1

Material Accounting Policies (continued)

FESFHE @

(j) Credit Losses and Impairment of Assets (continued)

@®

Credit losses from financial instruments (continued)

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition, the
Group and the University compare the risk of default occurring on the financial instrument assessed at the reporting
date with that assessed at the date of initial recognition. In making this reassessment, the Group and the University
consider that a default event occurs when (i) the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Group and the
University in full, without recourse by the Group and the University to actions such as realising security (if any is held);
or (ii) the financial asset is 90 days past due. The Group and the University consider both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable, including historical experience and forward-looking information that
is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition:

— failure to make payments of principal or interest on their contractually due dates;

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in a financial instrument’s external or internal credit rating (if
available);

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating results of the debtor; and

— existing or forecast changes in the technological, market, economic or legal environment that have a significant
adverse effect on the debtor’s ability to meet its obligation to the Group and the University.
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1

Material Accounting Policies (continued)

FESFHE @

(j) Credit Losses and Impairment of Assets (continued)

(i) Creditlosses from financial instruments (continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (continued)

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments, the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk is performed
on either an individual basis or a collective basis. When the assessment is performed on a collective basis, the financial
instruments are grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics, such as past due status and credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to reflect changes in the financial instrument’s credit risk since initial
recognition. Any change in the ECL amount is recognised as an impairment gain or loss in surplus or deficit. The Group
and the University recognise impairment gains or losses for all financial instruments with corresponding adjustments
to their carrying amount through a loss allowance account.

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in accordance with note 1(qg)(iii) is calculated based on the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset unless the financial asset is credit-impaired, in which case interest income is calculated based on the
amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount less loss allowance) of the financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group and the University assess whether a financial asset is credit-impaired. A financial
asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the financial asset have occurred.
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1 Material Accounting Policies (continued)
FEEHHE @

(j) Credit Losses and Impairment of Assets (continued)
(i) Creditlosses from financial instruments (continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income (continued)
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable events:

— significant financial difficulties of the debtor;
— a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event;
— it becoming probable that the borrower will enter into bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

— significant changes in the technological, market, economic or legal environment that have an adverse effect on
the debtor; or

— the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties of the issuer.

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset and lease receivable is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent
that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Group and the University determine

that the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the
amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was previously written off are recognised as a reversal of impairment in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income in the period in which the recovery occurs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf ##R &K K5

1 Material Accounting Policies (continuea)

FESFHE @

(j) Credit Losses and Impairment of Assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of other non-current assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at the end of each reporting period to identify indications
that the following assets may be impaired or an impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

— investment properties;

— other property, plant and equipment, including right-of-use assets;

— intangible assets;

— goodwill;

— investments in subsidiaries in the University’s Statement of Financial Position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill, intangible assets that
are not yet available for use and intangible assets that have indefinite useful lives, the recoverable amount is estimated
annually whether or not there is any indication of impairment.
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1

Material Accounting Policies (continued)

EEBE @

(j) Credit Losses and Impairment of Assets (continued)

(ii) Impairment of other non-current assets (continued)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset does
not generate cash inflows largely independent of those from other assets, the recoverable amount is determined for
the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit). A portion of the
carrying amount of a corporate assets (for example, head office building) is allocated to an individual cash-generating
unit if the allocation can be done on a reasonable and consistent basis, or to the smallest group of cash-generating
units if otherwise.

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income whenever the carrying amount of an
asset, or the cash-generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised
in respect of cash-generating units are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the
cash-generating unit (or group of units) and then, to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the unit (or
group of units) on a pro-rata basis, except that the carrying value of an asset will not be reduced below its individual
fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable) or value in use (if determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses
In respect of assets other than goodwill, an impairment loss is reversed if there has been a favourable change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the asset’s carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment losses are credited to the Statement of
Comprehensive Income in the year in which the reversals are recognised.
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(m)

(n)

(k)

M

(m)

(n)

Material Accounting Policies (continued)

FESFHE @

Accounts Receivable, Prepayments and Others

A receivable is recognised when the Group and the University have an unconditional right to receive consideration. A right
to receive consideration is unconditional if only the passage of time is required before payment of that consideration is due.
Accounts receivable, prepayments and others are stated at amortised cost using the effective interest method and including
an allowance for credit loss (see note 1(j)(i)).

Interest-bearing Borrowings and Borrowing Costs

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowing costs are expensed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the period in which they are incurred.

Accounts Payable and Accruals

Accounts payable and accruals are initially recognised at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition, account payable and
accruals are stated at amortised cost unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated
at invoice amounts.

Contract Liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays non-refundable consideration before the Group and the University
recognise the related revenue (see note 1(q)). A contract liability is recognised if the Group and the University have an
unconditional right to receive non-refundable consideration before the Group and the University recognise the related
revenue. In such latter cases, a corresponding receivable is recognised (see note 1(k)).
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Material Accounting Policies (continued)

EEBE @

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions,
and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within three months of maturity at acquisition. Cash and cash
equivalents are assessed for ECLs in accordance with the policy set out in note 7(j)(i).

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

General provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessment of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, the existence of which will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a provision is expected to be reimbursed by another party, a
separate asset is recognised for any expected reimbursement that would be virtually certain. The amount recognised for
the reimbursement is limited to the carrying amount of the provision.
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1 Material Accounting Policies (continuea)

FESFHE @

(9) Income Recognition

Income arises from the sale of goods, the provision of services or the use by others of the Group’s and the University’s assets
under leases in the ordinary course of the Group’s and the University’s business.

() Government subventions

Government grants are recognised in the Statement of Financial Position initially as deferred income when there is
reasonable assurance that the grants are received or receivables and that the Group and the University will comply
with the conditions attached to them. Grants that compensate the Group and the University for expenses incurred are
recognised as income in the Statement of Comprehensive Income on a systematic basis in the same periods in which
the expenses are incurred. Grants that compensate the Group and the University for the cost of an asset are deducted
from the carrying amount of the asset and consequently are effectively recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income over the useful life of the asset by way of reduced depreciation expense.

Recurrent grants for general purposes are recognised as income when the grants have been received or are receivable
from the UGC. Any such grants, which are received in excess of the related expenses incurred are transferred to the
General and Development Reserve Fund in the reporting period in accordance with prevailing UGC guidelines.

Matching grants are recognised as income when the grants have been received or are receivable from the UGC.

Earmarked grants other than matching grants are recognised as income to the extent of the related expenditure
incurred during the reporting period.
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Material Accounting Policies (continued)

FESFHE @

Income Recognition (continued)

(i)

Ciii)

(iv)

Tuition and other fees

Tuition and other fees are recognised as income on an accrual basis over the duration of the programmes and unearned
fees received are treated as contract liabilities.

Interest income

Interest income from the investment of unspent Hostel Development Funds is initially recognised as deferred income as
it accrues. It is initially recorded as deferred capital funds when spent on capital expenditure and recognised as income
covering the useful lives of the related assets when the assets are put into use, to the extent of the related depreciation
expenses incurred for that period.

Other interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective interest method using the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying amount
of the financial asset. For financial assets measured at amortised cost that are not credit-impaired, the effective interest
rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of the asset. For credit-impaired financial assets, the effective interest rate
is applied to the amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying amount, net of loss allowance) of the asset (see note 1(j)(i)).

Dividends

Dividend income from unlisted equity securities is recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive payment is
established. Dividend income from listed equity securities is recognised when the share price of the investment goes
ex-dividend.
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(a)

Material Accounting Policies (continued)

EEBE @

Income Recognition (continued)

(v) Donations and benefactions

Donations for general purpose are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income when the Group and the
University become entitled to the donations and it is probable that they will be received, which is generally upon
receipt of cash. Donations for specific purposes designated by donors are initially recognised as deferred income when
received. They are recognised as income when the related expenditure is incurred.

(vi) Rental income

Rental income receivable is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in equal instalments over the periods
covered by the lease term, except where an alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the use of the leased asset. Lease incentives granted are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments receivable.

(vii) Service income and other income

Service income and other income are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income when the related services
are rendered.
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Material Accounting Policies (continued)

FESFHE @

Employee Benefits

(i)  Salaries, paid annual leave and the cost of non-monetary benefits provided to employees are accrued in the year in
which the associated services are rendered by employees of the Group and the University.

(i)  Contributions to defined contribution retirement plans, including Mandatory Provident Funds as required under
the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, are recognised as an expense in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income as incurred.

(i) The Group and the University’s net obligation in respect of LSP under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance is
calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the current and prior periods and
discounting that amount. The estimated amount of future benefit is determined after deducting the negative service
cost arising from the accrued benefits derived from the Group and the University’s MPF contributions that have been
vested with employees, which are deemed to be contributions from the relevant employees.

The calculation of defined benefit obligation is performed by a qualified actuary.

(iv) Termination benefits are recognised when, and only when, the Group and the University demonstrably commit to
terminating employment or to provide benefits as a result of voluntary redundancy by having a detailed formal plan
which is without realistic possibility of withdrawal.

Income Tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and deferred tax. They are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income except to the extent that they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in Other Funds,
in which case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in Other Funds,
respectively.
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Material Accounting Policies (continued)

FESFHE @

Income Tax (continued)

Current tax comprises the estimated tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustments
to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax payable or receivable is the best
estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received that reflects any uncertainty related to income taxes. It is
measured using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. Current tax also includes any tax arising
from dividends.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is not recognised for:

— temporary differences on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination
and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss and does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences;

— temporary differences related to investment in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures to the extent that the Group
is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that they will not reverse in
the foreseeable future;

— taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill; and

— those related to the income taxes arising from tax laws enacted or substantively enacted to implement the Pillar Two
model rules published by the Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible temporary differences to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used. Future taxable
profits are determined based on the reversal of relevant taxable temporary differences. If the amount of taxable temporary
differences is insufficient to recognise a deferred tax asset in full, then future taxable profits, adjusted for reversals of existing
temporary differences, are considered, based on the business plans for individual subsidiaries in the Group. Deferred tax
assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax
benefit will be realised; such reductions are reversed when the probability of future taxable profits improves.

FrEH @

ARERTR RO FE S O E AR T UR A B RS 18 A I A sl FE U R BN LA N 1 AR T A R sl P AR TR R A ] B R o AN HAFE S sk R UK

RSB EBET MW BN RS ENREGT - R T EASHEENTANIEENE - E2FERAREEEEM

AR FEBEMAREREEN - EHHERERREMEEMNERFK -

RIER BV EREENMTENEENEENIREEEERSENMAMNIREE AT EEZEMER - U TS

A FERIREERL K -

— HEINEAHNRST  BENEBVRERANEREZRE AT Ee T ERFER  UWRTEABRSNERN
AR E R ER

— HRENMBLR  BEARRGECXEMNERMERE Bl AR ERAMEREREZENE @R
BZEFZRARARNGRRAENEEM

— BEVERANELNEREREEE N
— HERERLEASFRERABEMEOSIE _REMR RS R IAME BN OBOEEENMSHABARRK

BB REENERSRERNREER - KMEAORUE LM BN ERFEEZR - FIRSRKEHRAE R R B
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Material Accounting Policies (continued)

EEBE @

Income Tax (continued)

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any
such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements therein, are presented separately from each other and are
not offset. Current tax assets are offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities,
if the Group or the University has the legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
the following additional conditions are met:

(i) inthe case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Group or the University intends either to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously; or

(i) in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either:

— the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or recovered, intend to realise the current tax assets and settle the current tax
liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle simultaneously.

FREH (5)

E%EZLLMEQ%E&VﬁE&EﬁEE@Zﬁ%aﬁiﬁWFT ERBERARDERMRERERNRERAE o
EEFREER BB TARR -

EERIRRE ZIREEN S HREDREL RS - W68 &H R AERTOR N B HERE N IR MR /E L FRR o B 1%
FIREENIS R4 2 FERRBUS FE - SRS R T LA D -

RIS R IBRAER I EZEFH NN - WEATEE - MRABEBIKREFEETEEALSAHRIREE
ﬁ%ﬁ%mﬁéh WANA L THEERENERT - AR AARHRIBEEERHARRAAERAREHRAEE ERHE

() WEBAERBEEERAE ASBBIASHIRFREELE  FEERZEENBEZRAE 2
(i) MBECHEEENRAE ZRFEENBBELAER —HEEARA TR —BZEHMMEHAR
— R—ERRER X

— TRANERHER ZFERAIERHARBEEHERETERESRTEHRIAE E A LAY E & & ER R
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t)

(v)

)

(v)

Material Accounting Policies (continued)

FESFHE @

Translation of Foreign Currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. The transaction date is the date on which the Group and the
University initially recognise such non-monetary assets or liabilities. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair
value is measured.

The results of foreign operations outside Hong Kong are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Statement of Financial Position items
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the closing foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting period. The
resulting exchange differences are recognised as a movement in Other Funds.

On disposal of an operation outside Hong Kong, the cumulative amount of the exchange differences recognised in reserves
which relate to that operation outside Hong Kong is included in the calculation of the gain or loss on disposal.

Related Parties

(i) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related to the Group if that person:
a. has control or joint control over the Group and the University;
b. has significant influence over the Group and the University; or

c. isa member of the key management personnel of the Group and the University.

SEmE

FREANINER ZIRXZAMEXRBE - DIMNERBEUNEREERARRREERRNERRE - EX ABEEER
AR

PASMEEIRE L AT EBREEBEERAE @ NERXZAYNETRE - XHAH/ABEERASVERRERIES
MEEXREER - PONERSEMRARBEIIKNIEEEEREE  MRANEEETE AMERE -

BRIRINIMNE L BN EBEIAR 5 BT AINE E R IRE RAETT - AP EIRRANIE B AR EE BRI m HINEE =
BERAET MTELNER ZBHEHBESNEB TR -

EHETBRINGER  EREANCEREZT BRI LSEERNRAELZRCEBRENELENRNIEER -
)y
(i) ETIER  AAFHERBBIRAASEEH R
a. BMATHABERNASHEAZGIH R
b. ZATHARERBLAREBHEERATES @ %
ey

. BRAIRABEBLABTIZEEEN—8-
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Material Accounting Policies (continued)

EEBE @

(u) Related Parties (continued)

(ii)

An entity is related to the Group and the University if any of the following conditions applies:

a.

The entity and the Group and the University are members of the same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or a joint venture of a member of a
group of which the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.
One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity related
to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (i) above.

A person identified in (i)a above has significant influence over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides key management personnel services to the
Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by,
that person in their dealings with the entity.

(v) BEEEER (8
ETFBER - ZBRWRAEKEBEE L KNS EH
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(ii)

ZEREASBRELAZBR -—SEKE (NSEAF  WEBARXRARXMBARZEEREHE) -

EEBHEMEENBEAAEAR (UBEMKRENKENBERSLERRMAMEEREKE) -

ERBE-THALEARMEMERRE =THNBERT -
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% B RS UA L (i) Pt 69 (LA PP I S Rl 22
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2 Government Subventions

I2QER N

The Group and the University

REBEERKSE
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (UF#ETat) 2024 2023
Income from sources outside scope of EE B R ELERE 155K E
HKFRS 15 F LA BRI
Subventions from UGC BESRN
Block Grants BB 2,484,365 2,424,560
Supplementary Grants for Salary Revision AR 144,166 72,630
2,628,531 2,497,190
Earmarked Research Grants FEMRER 246,693 184,221
Other Earmarked Grants HsERR
Home Financing Scheme EFTEBhEH &l 228 228
Housing-related Benefits other than H fth B2 55 = 48 T
Home Financing Scheme ElzHEDE 13,884 13,884
Knowledge Transfer Fund MBEBREDHPE 9,273 9,131
Job Creation Scheme under PEREE SR
Anti-epidemic Fund BI3ER A FT 2 24,803 41,936
Others HAtb 35,921 37,332
84,109 102,511
Rates and Government Rent Refund REZ W RIBUTHAE 45,214 44,157
Capital Grants and Alterations, Additions, EART BRI -
Repairs and Improvements (AA&I) iR - BERIETIIE
Block Allocations BEEN 116,802 147,685
3,121,349 2,975,764
Grants from Other Government Agencies REE BB RR 394,146 291,696
3,515,495 3,267,460
3 Tuition and Other Fees
BERHEMKE
The Group and the University
RERERAZ
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (A FEITat) 2024 2023
Income from contracts with customers EERMBRELEAEISHER 2R
within scope of HKFRS 15 REEFEHNEA
UGC-funded Programmes HEGERE
Tuition 25 812,194 812,404
Other Fees Hh & 13,831 13,179
Non-UGC-funded Programmes IHEGEBRIE
Tuition 2 1,320,611 1,226,832
Other Fees Hb & 49,268 28,885
2,195,904 2,081,300
Tuition is recognised over time, and other fees are recognised at a point in time.
BERERHEER - AE R ERNERER -
Financial Report Bi#§#s 202324 471



Notes to the Financial Statements 8% 3% K &

42

Donations and Benefactions

ECEASE L
The Group XR2%E§ The University X2
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (A FEITAt) 2024 2023 2024 2023
Income from sources outside EEBUBREERE 155K
scope of HKFRS 15 &[5 B 9 A SRR
Capital Projects HATRE 17,367 81,014 17,367 81,014
Scholarships, Prizes and Bursaries #8e  RERPES 30,486 21,703 30,486 21,703
Research Activities R LE) 65,953 52,776 65,953 52,776
University Development and Others ~ KEZ28E & HAb 36,898 24,851 36,898 24,861
Donations and Benefactions REERE
Received for the Year BRKREE 150,704 180,344 150,704 180,354
Transfer to Deferred Income B S IREIWNA (30,941) (19,084) (30,941) (19,084)
Transfer to Deferred Capital Funds ERSREEAES (14,233) (77,394) (14,233) (77,394)
105,530 83,866 105,530 83,876

During the year, the University received $63,894,000 (2023: $63,561,000) from The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust
towards the construction of the Jockey Club One Health Tower and four community service projects.

FAREEBWNEEA RS SRS TESBI 26,3898 4T L (20234 16,3568 1T70)  tFAME [ BES@EE—
B RE I R 4B RGTEZA -

Interest and Net Investment Returns

FRRFREMR
The Group X2 %E The University X2

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AFETat) 2024 2023 2024 2023
Income from sources outside EEBMBHRELERE ISR

scope of HKFRS 15 5 S 9 A ZRIR
Interest Income T B WA 121,761 104,191 122,896 105,111
Dividend Income A S U 51,287 28,780 51,287 28,780
Realised Losses on Investments BENEEREE (6,472) (307,944) (5,998) (307,944)
Unrealised Gains on Investments RENRER W 253,800 183,929 253,800 183,929
Fair Value Losses on HbiR &R

Other Investments NI EEEE (20,596) (2,265) (119) (503)
Interest and Net Investment FERFRE

Returns =k 399,780 6,691 421,866 9,373

For the year ended 30 June 2023, Interest and Net Investment Returns were listed separately in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income. For the year ended 30 June 2024, these amounts have been moved under “Income” to better
show the Group's and University’s recurring income, and last year’s figures have been reclassified accordingly.
BE2023F6 A30ALFE AR MFREMNBEBIN TN E2EKERT - BE2024F6 A30BILFE - ZF28RE
BEMRAIET NEREHBERIAZEBMAZNLEERA - EFNBIEEHEEH IR -
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6 Auxiliary Services

8 18 IR 7%
The Group XR2%E# The University X2
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (X FETat) 2024 2023 2024 2023
Income from contracts with EEBUBREERE 155K
customers within scope of HECAEEFEN
HKFRS 15 recognised at a B MR T A 54 B 5 B
point in time B2
Catering Services R AR 24,763 20,693 24,763 20,693
University Press REH Mt 2,802 2,426 2,802 2,426
Others HAh 9,452 10,197 6,465 6,410
Income from sources EEBMBWMEERE 155
outside scope of HKFRS 15 B B 9 U ABROR
Rental Income Ha WA 53,087 56,155 48,406 49,012
Residence Halls BARE 86,978 74,532 86,978 74,532
Rental Contributions from Staff HBEFERS 6,465 7,572 6,465 7,572
183,547 171,575 175,879 160,645
7 Other Income
Hihigt A
The Group X 2%g The University X2
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (A FXETat) 2024 2023 2024 2023
Service Income BRAEUA 293,089 268,528 87,412 92,120
Contract Research &R 8,653 10,896 8,653 10,896
Miscellaneous FEIR 78,309 28,430 61,510 10,874
380,051 307,854 157,575 113,890

Financial Report Bif§#fes 202324 43



Notes to the Financial Statements 8% 3% K &

(a)

44

Expenditure
X
Analysis of Expenditure
sy
The Group K2
2024
Staff Costs Operating Depreciation
and Benefits Expenses and Others Total
0 B
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (XFEITEt) RER EEMX WERHEAM st
Learning and Research HERME
Instruction and Research HE LR 2,593,583 957,290 198,063 3,748,936
Library EES 60,988 69,054 4,020 134,062
Central Computing Facilities PR BERE 130,544 33,844 60,441 224,829
Other Academic Services Hb B RS 208,246 87,381 3,728 299,355
2,993,361 1,147,569 266,252 4,407,182
Institutional Support HELE
Management and General B R —HRIEHR 402,192 96,093 7,200 505,485
Premises and Related Expenses R&ERBRARX 183,599 446,018 442,698 1,072,315
Student and General BAER
Education Services HE R 65,731 291,558 3,317 360,606
Other Activities H )% 161,133 94,717 15,934 271,784
812,655 928,386 469,149 2,210,190
Total Expenditure MR 3,806,016 2,075,955 735,401 6,617,372
The Group K28
2023
Staff Costs Operating Depreciation
and Benefits Expenses and Others Total
0 8 Fr B
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AF&Tat) RAEF| BiBHAX WERHEAM 4zt
Learning and Research HERMR
Instruction and Research HE LR 2,392,972 894,286 167,889 3,455,147
Library B£8R 54,965 67,062 3,944 125,971
Central Computing Facilities AR o BB B R 138,971 41,467 60,929 241,367
Other Academic Services H 2 IR 181,767 76,484 3,456 261,707
2,768,675 1,079,299 236,218 4,084,192
Institutional Support HELE
Management and General EBR—MBIER 369,596 83,946 4,005 457,547
Premises and Related Expenses ReEREARALZ 187,621 442,944 458,675 1,089,240
Student and General BER
Education Services AR 73,454 294,408 5,429 373,291
Other Activities H )& 145,470 99,028 18,955 263,453
776,141 920,326 487,064 2,183,531
Total Expenditure #WE X 3,544,816 1,999,625 723,282 6,267,723
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(a)

ExpenditU e (continued)

B X ()
Analysis of Expenditure (continued)
Rz o ()
The University X2
2024
Staff Costs Operating Depreciation
and Benefits Expenses and Others Total
2 B
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (X FEITEt) RER HEEX MERHEA st
Learning and Research HERME
Instruction and Research HE LR 2,593,583 967,482 198,063 3,759,128
Library E&E8E 60,988 69,054 4,020 134,062
Central Computing Facilities PR BRI 130,544 33,844 60,441 224,829
Other Academic Services H 2 R 208,246 87,381 3,728 299,355
2,993,361 1,157,761 266,252 4,417,374
Institutional Support HELE
Management and General ERER—HRIEHR 402,192 91,967 7,200 501,359
Premises and Related Expenses REREARALZ 183,599 437,369 440,821 1,061,789
Student and General 2aEK
Education Services HE RS 65,731 291,558 3,317 360,606
Other Activities H )% B 66 34,494 475 35,035
651,588 855,388 451,813 1,958,789
Total Expenditure HWE 3,644,949 2,013,149 718,065 6,376,163
The University A2
2023
Staff Costs Operating Depreciation
and Benefits Expenses and Others Total
B F
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AF&ETA) RAEF BBRAY WEREAM st
Learning and Research HERMR
Instruction and Research HE LR 2,392,972 917,618 167,889 3,478,479
Library EER 54,965 67,062 3,944 125,971
Central Computing Facilities o BB B R 138,971 41,467 60,929 241,367
Other Academic Services HbHBIRS 181,767 76,484 3,456 261,707
2,768,675 1,102,631 236,218 4,107,524
Institutional Support HELE
Management and General EIE R —ARIEH 369,596 79,140 4,005 452,741
Premises and Related Expenses ReEkE@EALZ 187,621 434,113 456,720 1,078,454
Student and General BER
Education Services AR 73,454 294,408 5,429 373,291
Other Activities H )% B 36 32,363 275 32,674
630,707 840,024 466,429 1,937,160
Total Expenditure HEA 3,399,382 1,942,655 702,647 6,044,684
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Expenditure (continued)

B ()

Analysis of Operating Expenses

EBERXZIN
The Group X2 E§E The University X2
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AFETEt) 2024 2023 2024 2023
Instruction and Research HERMR
Teaching and Instruction HE 215,538 202,124 218,021 215,601
Research Studentships RREHZES 424,716 391,876 424,716 391,876
Research and Teaching I R
Development Projects BRETE 317,036 300,286 324,745 310,141
957,290 894,286 967,482 917,618
Library BlEtE 69,054 67,062 69,054 67,062
Central Computing Facilities R S KRR B 33,844 41,467 33,844 41,467
Other Academic Services Hith 2 2 PR 87,381 76,484 87,381 76,484
Management and General EER—RIER
Publicity SEEMEE 14,914 14,117 14,914 14,117
Auditor’s Remuneration A2 1,784 1,835 661 792
Legal and Professional Fees Yk 7,083 7,611 4,895 5,056
General Insurance —RRBE 4,549 4,854 3,734 3,646
Office Expenses and Others WAEREZ REHA 67,763 55,529 67,763 55,529
96,093 83,946 91,967 79,140
Premises and Related Expenses REREBEHEX
Repairs and Maintenance #ERIRE 84,037 89,329 83,750 88,955
Rental of Leased Premises and Others A& XM S K EHAb 12,993 11,253 12,993 11,253
Notional Rent of BEES

Surplus Staff Quarters 2EHE 35,060 33,994 35,060 33,994
Utilities, Cleaning and Security FEFKERAL -

Services BREREE 234,445 225,327 228,734 219,660
Government Rent and Rates BT Hb7E K 2= £ 50,179 49,375 50,210 49,375
Property Insurance MERRE 12,329 11,848 12,329 11,848
Office Expenses and Others WA R HAL 16,975 21,818 14,293 19,028

446,018 442 944 437,369 434,113
Student and General Education BER

Services BER®
Student Support BAYIR 248,076 244,484 248,076 244,484
Health Centre RIEH L 18,725 18,394 18,725 18,394
Sport Facilities BB R 5,610 5,174 5,610 5,174
Residence Halls Student Activities BHEEEEE) 4,032 3,860 4,032 3,860
Cultural and Sports Activities XL REEEES 8,281 16,645 8,281 16,645
Office Expenses and Others MAEFZ REA 6,834 5,851 6,834 5,851

291,558 294,408 291,558 294,408
Other Activities Hth E & 94,717 99,028 34,494 32,363
2,075,955 1,999,625 2,013,149 1,942,655
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()

ExpenditU e (continued)

B ()

Remuneration of Senior Staff

= AR S TR R EF

The number of staff members with remuneration exceeding $1,800,000 is as follows:

BN AR AR H 180 B T B ABART

Number of Individuals A

2024 2023
$1,800,001 to $1,950,000 62 61
$1,950,001 to $2,100,000 75 54
$2,100,001 to $2,250,000 45 47
$2,250,001 to $2,400,000 36 26
$2,400,001 to $2,550,000 19 28
$2,550,001 to $2,700,000 24 23
$2,700,001 to $2,850,000 22 22
$2,850,001 to $3,000,000 14 18
$3,000,001 to $3,150,000 10 12
$3,150,001 to $3,300,000 9 12
$3,300,001 to $3,450,000 18 14
$3,450,001 to $3,600,000 15 12
$3,600,001 to $3,750,000 8 6
$3,750,001 to $3,900,000 4 4
$3,900,001 to $4,050,000 6 7
$4,050,001 to $4,200,000 4 4
$4,200,001 to $4,350,000 5 2
$4,350,001 to $4,500,000 2 3
$4,500,001 to $4,650,000 3 2
$4,650,001 to $4,800,000 1 —
$4,800,001 to $4,950,000 — 1
$4,950,001 to $5,100,000 1 _
$5,250,001 to $5,400,000 — 1
$5,400,001 to $5,550,000 1 —
$8,100,001 to $8,250,000 1 —
$8,550,001 to $8,700,000 1 —
$9,150,001 to $9,300,000 — 1
386 360
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(Tax Credit)/Tax Expense
(FREKS) HEXH

(Tax Credit)/Tax Expense in the Statement of Comprehensive Income of the Group and
University represent:

RBERERAB2EKSRATH (HERS) FHEXIHS

The Group X2 %E The University X2

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LA FETat) 2024 2023 2024 2023
Current Tax — AEEBE —
Hong Kong Profits Tax EBRE
— Provision for the Year — REERE 51 87 51 87
— Under-provision for Prior Years — WA FE R IR E 95 129 95 48
146 216 146 135
China Enterprise Income Tax PR EMRER
— Provision for the Year — RNEERE 13 67 13 67
— Over-provision for Prior Years — BEBUTFERIBERE — (57) — (57)
13 10 13 10
Deferred Tax EEBE
— Origination and Reversal of — R ERIEE
Temporary Difference FHE @] (3,122) (2,231) — —
(Tax Credit)/Tax Expense (BIEUWRE) /HIESH (2,963) (2,005) 159 145

The University and one of its subsidiaries, CityU Professional Services Limited, are exempted from payment of Hong Kong
Profits Tax by virtue of Section 88 of the Inland Revenue Ordinance.

Other subsidiaries of the University in Hong Kong are subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profits for the year, except for one subsidiary of the Group, which is a qualifying corporation under the two-tiered
Profits Tax rate regime. For this subsidiary, the first $2 million of assessable profits are taxed at 8.25% and the remaining
assessable profits are taxed at 16.5%. No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for the year ended 30 June 2024 has been
made as the subsidiaries did not derive any assessable profit for the year (2023: nil). Taxation for mainland China operations
is charged at the appropriate prevailing rate of taxation ruling in mainland China.

REBEEFBHBIEDIFE8E  ABRE—HMEBAR —WASXERARATR  HA#MLEENEH

RASEEN —HHEARE—RAERZANEHMAH KRR - KEEFBNEMMNE R RRAFENAEF
BAELA16.5% HEFAERBNEH - EXRZMBAR - H2008 TR RNBENMERER8.25% » HEFIERAERT
BAMEIA16.5% B EREH - M BARNAFELBELFFHRMNE  WEBATLREREE202456 A30R ILF
BELEEMS B (20234 © ) - PEAREEFHHIBEAPERITERREGTHE -
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(b)

(Tax Credit)/Tax Expense (continued)
(FIEURE) MIEXZH @

Reconciliation between Tax (Credit)/Expenses and
Accounting Surplus/(Deficit) at Applicable Tax Rates:

EREABRENREAR (BIR) RHE (RES) X HOHIR :

The Group K2 %8

The University X2

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AFETat) 2024 2023 2024 2023
Surplus/(Deficit) before Taxation BRI AL (EE) 142,176 (365,331) 174,817 (344,490)
Notional Tax on Surplus/(Deficit)

before Taxation, Calculated REBATNEER

at the Rates Applicable to BRANMEHE &

Surplus/(Deficit) in the Tax ERBE A&t (E18)

Jurisdictions Concerned FrestEHe R BT 23,095 (60,416) 28,845 (56,841)
Tax Effect of Non-taxable Income ERRRBANE S 2 (1,078,815) (939,922) (1,084,421) (943,230)
Tax Effect of Non-deductible Expenses “~AJ 35 37 H 8% 75 52 £ 1,053,938 994,306 1,055,576 1,000,071
Tax Effect of Unutilised Tax Losses RUHER KRB RHIE

not Recognised EEOTHETE 402 2,015 — —
Tax Effect of Temporary Differences  “F R W R 2= B

Recognised during the Year M (1,190) 1,786 — —
Tax Effect of Utilisation of FRARWERTIEEER

Unrecognised Tax Losses M (552) — — —
Under-/(Over)-provision for R ORE) EEE

Prior Years IBRE 95 72 95 Q)
Others Hh 64 154 64 154
Actual Tax (Credit)/Expenses EEBIE () S (2,963) (2,005) 159 145
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10 Segment Reporting

2ERERE

Segment Report prepared for the year ended 30 June 2024 with the adoption of CAGs with effect from 1 July 2018.

HZE2024F6 A30B ILFERMNE2018F7 A1 BEA MM KA DM FrimEiay

The Group RE2E8

PaNvi

7] n’gi’iﬁ&t:lt °©

2024
Non-UGC-funded Activities ¥ E € &8N EH
Self- Non-UGC- Inter-
UGC- financing funded segment
funded Teaching Research Donations Other Transaction Overall
Activities  Activities Activities Activities Activities Sub-total Elimination Total
(In thousands of HEE® BEEE FHEeE PERSH
Hong Kong dollars) (L FHETET) EEs HBTEH BNWER BRED  HEEH PEE ZXRBEE Mt
Revenue ['ON
Government BT
Subventions B3 3,427,936 612 46,321 — 40,626 87,559 — 3,515,495
Tuition and BB RAEM
Other Fees lg=¢ 826,025 1,369,796 — — 83 1,369,879 — 2,195,904
Donations and B
Benefactions B 26,774 — 7,985 70,771 — 78,756 - 105,530
Interest and Net FER
Investment Returns FIREER 199,690 2,508 2,016 30,742 166,908 202,174 (2,084) 399,780
Auxiliary Services FIERTS 85,271 47 — — 98,229 98,276 — 183,547
Other Income R ON 104,666 201 33,971 11 269,983 304,166  (28,781) 380,051
4,670,362 1,373,164 90,293 101,524 575,829 2,140,810 (30,865) 6,780,307
Expenditure i3
Learning and Research ~ # & R#i%
Instruction and HER
Research 5 2,831,599 444,599 155,984 17,214 305,114 922,911 (5,574) 3,748,936
Library ElEEE 104,325 26,236 3,397 — 104 29,737 — 134,062
Central Computing R BN
Facilities B 175,048 44,021 5,701 — 59 49,781 — 224,829
Other Academic Hih 2
Services PR 205,548 35,718 25,684 — 32,405 93,807 — 299,355
Institutional Support HELR
Management and EER
General —RIEE 359,039 94,389 11,592 31,066 9,399 146,446 — 505,485
Premises and R&ER
Related Expenses BHEMAX 787,958 157,608 21,344 1,880 108,337 289,169 (4,812) 1,072,315
Students and 25K
General Education #HE
Services PR 94,035 24,233 459 35,638 206,241 266,571 — 360,606
Other Activities H A5 S 16,388 3,643 488 — 269,660 273,791  (18,395) 271,784
Finance Costs B8 20,790 165 — — 3,210 3,375 (2,084) 22,081
Share of Profit of EIEAEERT]
a Joint Venture FHE — — — — (1,322) (1,322) — (1,322)
Tax Expense/ BELH,
(Tax Credit) (BiEles) — 146 — —  (3,109)  (2,963) — (2,963)
4,594,730 830,758 224,649 85,798 930,098 2,071,303 (30,865) 6,635,168
Surplus/(Deficit) rEERH
for the Year (E&518) 75,632 542,406 (134,356) 15,726  (354,269) 69,507 — 145,139
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10 Segment Reporting (continved)

DEERE (@)

Segment Report prepared for the year ended 30 June 2023 with the adoption of CAGs with effect from 1 July 2018.

HZE2023F6 A30B ILFERMNE2018F7 A1 BEEARNKADMHIES| iR D EiRE -

The Group K288

2023
Non-UGC-funded Activities JEE & & B)EE)
Self-  Non-UGC- Inter-
UGC-  financing funded segment
funded Teaching Research  Donations Other Transaction Overall
Activities Activities Activities Activities Activities Sub-total  Elimination Total
(In thousands of nEE® BEBE FHEgE NERRSHE
Hong Kong dollars) (UF#ETat) EBEE  HEEH PHEHEH  BREE  HEtED PNE 2R S st
Revenue ['ON
Government [29/5]
Subventions R 3,187,117 584 38,764 — 40,995 80,343 — 3,267,460
Tuition and BERHM
Other Fees g 825,582 1,255,618 — — 100 1,255,718 — 2,081,300
Donations and BRK
Benefactions B 29,225 — — 54,651 — 54,651 (10) 83,866
Interest and Net FER
Investment Returns FIRERER 2,297 3,449 3,196 30,283 (30,786) 6,142 (1,748) 6,691
Auxiliary Services B R 80,082 26 — — 91,467 91,493 — 171,575
Other Income Hitn A 76,871 674 22,708 — 227,397 250,779 (19,796) 307,854
4,201,174 1,260,351 64,668 84,934 329,173 1,739,126 (21,554) 5,918,746
Expenditure X
Learning and Research ~ # & k#I%
Instruction and HER
Research 3 2,648,769 425,135 135,190 12,113 239,383 811,821 (5,443) 3,455,147
Library EZ8E 99,767 22,866 3,159 67 112 26,204 — 125,971
Central Computing R
Facilities Bdiic) 193,619 41,909 5,790 — 49 47,748 — 241,367
Other Academic Hin
Services % 178,598 31,147 20,915 10 31,037 83,109 — 261,707
Institutional Support HELR
Management and EERR
General —MRIEE 339,499 82,329 10,599 16,908 8,819 118,655 (607) 457,547
Premises and RE Rk
Related Expenses BERX 814,982 155,647 21,521 3,508 98,386 279,062 (4,804) 1,089,240
Students and SER
General Education HE
Services AR 110,264 25,534 509 37,139 199,845 263,027 — 373,291
Other Activities Hi)Es) 19,479 3,898 554 — 248,474 252,926 (8,952) 263,453
Finance Costs BsERA 12,113 3,173 383 — 3,333 6,889 (1,748) 17,254
Share of Profit of - VNG|
a Joint Venture FE — — — — (900) (900) — (900)
Tax Expense/ BmELH,
(Tax Credit) (i) — 135 10 — (2,150) (2,005) — (2,005)
4,417,090 791,773 198,630 69,745 826,388 1,886,536 (21,554) 6,282,072
(Deficit)/Surplus EE (BR)
for the Year Bt (215,916) 468,578 (133,962) 15,189 (497,215) (147,410) — (363,326)
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10 Segment Reporting (continved)

DEERE (@)

Segment Report prepared for the year ended 30 June 2024 with the adoption of CAGs with effect from 1 July 2018.

HZE2024F6 A30B ILFERMNE2018F7 A1 BEA MM KA DM FrimEiay

The University X2

PaNvi

7] n’gi’iﬁ&t:lt °©

2024
Non-UGC-funded Activities ¥ E € &8N EH
Self- Non-UGC- Inter-
UGC- financing funded segment
funded Teaching Research Donations Other Transaction Overall
Activities  Activities Activities Activities Activities Sub-total Elimination Total
(In thousands of HEE® BEEE FHEeE PERSH
Hong Kong dollars) (L FHETET) EYEs HBTEH BNWER BREDH  HEEH PEE ZXRBEE Mt
Revenue L'ON
Government [I29/5]
Subventions B3R 3,427,936 612 46,321 — 40,626 87,559 — 3,515,495
Tuition and BERHM
Other Fees g = 826,025 1,369,796 — — 83 1,369,879 — 2,195,904
Donations and Bk
Benefactions B 26,774 — 7,985 70,771 — 78,756 — 105,530
Interest and Net FER
Investment Returns FIRE DR 199,690 2,508 2,016 30,742 186,910 222,176 — 421,866
Auxiliary Services IR 85,271 47 — — 90,561 90,608 — 175,879
Other Income HAabdA 104,666 201 33,971 1 18,726 52,909 — 157,575
4,670,362 1,373,164 90,293 101,524 336,906 1,901,887 — 6,572,249
Expenditure i3
Learning and Research  #{ 8 M %
Instruction and HER
Research o 2,831,599 444,599 155,984 17,214 309,732 927,529 — 3,759,128
Library EEEE 104,325 26,236 3,397 — 104 29,737 — 134,062
Central Computing R B
Facilities B 175,048 44,021 5,701 — 59 49,781 — 224,829
Other Academic Hin#
Services PR 205,548 35,718 25,684 — 32,405 93,807 — 299,355
Institutional Support HELR
Management and EERK
General —RIEH 359,039 94,389 11,592 31,066 5,273 142,320 — 501,359
Premises and &k
Related Expenses BERZ 787,958 157,608 21,344 1,880 92,999 273,831 — 1,061,789
Students and 25K
General Education HE
Services ilsSic 94,035 24,233 459 35,638 206,241 266,571 — 360,606
Other Activities HES) 16,388 3,643 488 — 14,516 18,647 — 35,035
Finance Costs Bis &R 20,790 165 — — 314 479 — 21,269
Tax Expense Bz — 146 — — 13 159 — 159
4,594,730 830,758 224,649 85,798 661,656 1,802,861 — 6,397,591
Surplus/(Deficit) rEERHB
for the Year (E518) 75,632 542,406 (134,356) 15,726 (324,750) 99,026 — 174,658
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10 Segment Reporting (continved)

DEERE (@)

Segment Report prepared for the year ended 30 June 2023 with the adoption of CAGs with effect from 1 July 2018.

HZE2023F6 A30B ILFERMNE2018F7 A1 BEEARNKADMIES| TR D ERE -

The University A2

2023
Non-UGC-funded Activities JEE & & B)EE)
Self-  Non-UGC- Inter-
UGC-  financing funded segment
funded Teaching Research  Donations Other Transaction Overall
Activities Activities Activities Activities Activities Sub-total  Elimination Total
(In thousands of nEE® BEBE FHEgE NERRSHE
Hong Kong dollars) (UF#ETat) AEEE HBEH BREY  BREE  HEHED PNE 2R S st
Revenue WA
Government [29/5]
Subventions R 3,187,117 584 38,764 — 40,995 80,343 — 3,267,460
Tuition and BERHM
Other Fees g 825,582 1,255,618 — — 100 1,255,718 — 2,081,300
Donations and BRK
Benefactions B 29,225 — — 54,651 — 54,651 — 83,876
Interest and Net FER
Investment Returns FIRERER 2,297 3,449 3,196 30,283  (29,852) 7,076 — 9,373
Auxiliary Services B R 80,082 26 — — 80,537 80,563 — 160,645
Other Income Hitn A 76,871 674 22,708 — 13,637 37,019 — 113,890
4,201,174 1,260,351 64,668 84,934 105,417 1,515,370 — 5,716,544
Expenditure X
Learning and Research ~ # & k#I%
Instruction and HER
Research M 2,648,769 425,135 135,190 12,113 257,272 829,710 — 3,478,479
Library EZ8E 99,767 22,866 3,159 67 112 26,204 — 125,971
Central Computing R
Facilities Bdiic) 193,619 41,909 5,790 — 49 47,748 — 241,367
Other Academic Hin
Services % 178,598 31,147 20,915 10 31,037 83,109 — 261,707
Institutional Support HELR
Management and EERR
General —MRIEE 339,499 82,329 10,599 16,908 3,406 113,242 — 452,741
Premises and RE Rk
Related Expenses B 814,982 155,647 21,521 3,508 82,796 263,472 — 1,078,454
Students and SER
General Education #HE
Services AR 110,264 25,534 509 37,139 199,845 263,027 — 373,291
Other Activities Hi)Es) 19,479 3,898 554 — 8,743 13,195 — 32,674
Finance Costs BsERA 12,113 3,173 383 — 681 4,237 — 16,350
Tax Expense B — 135 10 — — 145 — 145
4,417,090 791,773 198,630 69,745 583,941 1,644,089 — 6,061,179
(Deficit)/Surplus REE (BR)
for the Year B (215,916) 468,578 (133,962) 15,189 (478,524) (128,719) — (344,635)
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DEERE (@)

Notes:
Disclosures regarding segment reporting are included as a requirement of SORP for the UGC-funded institutions and are not designated
to fully comply with the requirements of HKFRS 8, Operating Segments.

Operating segments are reported by the source of funding, namely UGC-funded activities and non-UGC-funded activities, as required by
the SORP. UGC-funded activities include programmes and research projects funded by UGC grants. Non-UGC-funded activities include
self-financing teaching activities, non-UGC research activities, donations and others.

The University has guidelines and policies on cost allocation. Recurrent Grants from UGC are provided to the UGC-funded institutions to
support their academic and related activities. As such, there shall be no cross-subsidisation of UGC resources to non-UGC-funded activities.
Non-UGC-funded activities are those activities outside the scope of activities supported by the UGC and the costs of such activities shall
not be covered by UGC funds.

Expenses which can be separately identified are charged to the appropriate accounts of UGC-funded and non-UGC-funded activities
directly. Other expenses are allocated to accounts of UGC-funded and non-UGC-funded activities via cost recovery including staff cost
recovery, non-staffing cost reimbursement and overhead recovery.

Cost allocation practices for UGC-funded and non-UGC-funded activities

i The University determines the basis of allocation of costs between UGC-funded and non-UGC-funded activities with reference to the
UGC Notes on Procedures and the CAGs which is effective from 1 July 2018.

i The classification of UGC-funded and non-UGC-funded activities is based on the funding source of the activities. The direct costs of the
UGC-funded and non-UGC-funded activities are both charged fully and directly to the respective activities.

iii The CAGs define principles and approaches of cost allocation, including the definition of cost pools and cost drivers for UGC-funded
and non-UGC-funded activities on a full cost recovery basis.

et
BN BME 2 WEDRBESEYFRNERENER AN LR BBV REER | FREES A 2 REMMREL -

BEDBRIREFRERNBTORETRS - ARESEWEDIFHESEN LY - HESEM T REAHESHREDRE
LHISIAR - IMEGEARPEEAEZEHRLEY FFRESEMATEY - BRRBRBREM -

REBERADENEGTHMBEK - REGAXEPEREHRERE MR LEDEBMEAREY - Fit - HEGERNSMIEH
EeEWARPRHED - IHHESEYTIRIEGIHNEDHE /NG -  HAGERITREELEHNER -

EIRBNEREZARESEYNIIHESEEDNESRA XN - A EREBRANE SR - BIEBEFMKE - FBRE
B ey M EEE AR -

HESEYRIBESEMTHNNEDRERF
i RPETHESENEGERE SR N AN ELEN 2 EHEGRFREURN 20187 A1 BERZ KA S #IES| -

i HEGEDEIHEGE LTS Z N BENEREINR - HEGEDEIHESENEH C ARKN AN EER 2 RS REEHT
%o

i BADEISIERANEZ RANIDEEHES - BEAE2BNAKEEEAENRE S EYEIFHEGE RS 2 NAE REKA
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1l

UGC Funds
HEZES

The Group KRE2EE

The University X2

General and  Matching General and  Matching
Development Grant Development Grant
Reserve Fund Scheme Total Reserve Fund Scheme Total
Note (a) Note (b) Note (a) Note (b)
—RREE [iT¥) —RREE [iT¥)
(In thousands of #EES wHHeHa st #EES wHHLHa st
Hong Kong dollars) (A FETEt) Mat (a) KtaE (b) HteE(a) Kt (b)
Balance at 1 July 2022 202271848 1,293,559 421,130 1,714,689 1,293,618 421,130 1,714,748
(Deficit)/Surplus for the Year B (Z£) /B2 ®E
Transferred (to)/from WK
the Statement of REE
Comprehensive Income (E518) /& (241,202) 5,381  (235,821) (241,202) 5,381  (235,821)
Inter-Fund Transfers B8 29 — 29 — — —
Balance at 20236 A30HA K
30 June 2023 2023%7H81H
and 1 July 2023 ek 1,052,386 426,511 1,478,897 1,052,416 426,511 1,478,927
Surplus for the Year EEec2m
Transferred from W Es IR
the Statement of AEE
Comprehensive Income Pack:2S 10,349 6,812 17,161 10,349 6,812 17,161
Balance at 30 June 2024 202496 830H 48 1,062,735 433,323 1,496,058 1,062,765 433,323 1,496,088

Notes:

(a) General and Development Reserve Fund

The General and Development Reserve Fund (GDRF) represents the unspent funds carried over from one funding period (usually a
triennium) to the next to facilitate the University’s longer-term planning and new developmental needs. The balance of the GDRF at the
end of a funding period should not exceed 20% of the University’s approved Recurrent Grants other than the Earmarked Grants for
Specific Purposes for that funding period, and any excess amount is refundable to UGC.

it -
@) —BEBRERED

—RRERFEESENEFIARCAER=ZFH) ABAMAIASES B YAEARREREINERNES - —RNER
FEHESHRERUANPEREZEENMHE S (BHRAS 2B EEHERIN 8920% /R - MBLRENLOITREHNES -
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11 UGC Funds (continued)
BRERESH®
Notes (continued):

(b) Matching Grant Scheme

The fund represents the unspent matching grants under the UGC Matching Grant Schemes. The first Matching Grant Scheme to award
UGC-funded institutions in securing private donations was introduced in 2003.

The details of Matching Grants, Matched Donations and their related expenditure are summarised below:
et (&) -
(b) Bt ¥ Bh & 51 &

HESERESRENED S TS M AN 2 FRACHEN - £ REHHH S BN 2003F5|A - BRE ST THRRKY
ERNMABSIRHSERR -

e - DRSS ERRA A AZEgam T

The Group and the University X Z2&E K A2

56

2024 2023
Matching Matched Matching Matched
Grants Donations Grants Donations
B 2% [k} B
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AFETat) wWEHe [TESE=EN Gk [iRESEIPN
Balance at the Beginning of
the Year FANERR 426,511 624,729 421,130 620,267
Income ' ON
Interest and Investment Income FERREWRA 8,431 14,723 8,354 14,849
8,431 14,723 8,354 14,849
Expenditure and Transfers B R ER
Academic Development SR 268 2,652 167 1,573
Research Activities HITEH — (454) — 1,103
Student Activities BA RS — 1,285 500 1,002
Scholarships and Prizes REPNRES 951 3,437 1,906 5,309
Bursaries PES — 868 — 569
Management and General EER—MIER 400 800 400 831
1,619 8,588 2,973 10,387
Balance at the End of the Year FRER 433,323 630,864 426,511 624,729
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12 Restricted Fund for Research
MEEHES

The Restricted Fund for Research represents the unspent funding designated for research purposes. The Fund is attributable
to the University and its subsidiaries.

MABRESR/EEREMRTAEERERZES - ZESBRARRENBAR -

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (A FETat) The Group KE &5 The University X2
Balance at 1 July 2022 20227 A1 A& 862,702 862,605
Transfers to Statement of S

Comprehensive Income 2HEKET (20,573) (20,573)
Inter-Fund Transfers (Note a) EeBE (fiia) 23,783 23,880
Balance at 30 June 2023 and 20236 A30B K

1 July 2023 20237 A 1B &% 865,912 865,912
Transfers from Statement of e

Comprehensive Income 2EKEE 24,259 24,259
Inter-Fund Transfers (Note a) HEew@EaE (fita) 17,597 17,597
Balance at 30 June 2024 2024% 6 A30 A& 907,768 907,768
Note:

(a) Inter-fund transfers represent fund transfers from Donations and Benefactions and Self-financing Activities Fund to the Restricted Fund
for Research to support research projects.

fifaz
() B BREIERBHRLBENEELERAESBEREMAERESD - MIESIEMTAR -
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13

58

Other Funds
The Group K2R
Fair Value
Self- Gains/
financing Donations Non- (Losses)
Activities and operating on Other
Fund Benefactions Reserve Investments Total
Note (a) Note (b) Note (c)
HithiREH
BEEE B FEE AREE
EHEES kg BE#E W& (EE) “Et
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AF3ETEt) btaz (a) btaz (b) BtaE (c)
Balance at 1 July 2022 2022F 7818 &8% 2,474,200 1,752,567 8,687 6,247 4,241,701
Deficit for the Year Transferred to the EREZE2EIRZEERMN
Statement of Comprehensive Income A& [Z 518 (42,957) (63,472) — (503)  (106,932)
Other Comprehensive Income Eith 2 mE e
Exchange Differences on Translation — #EEBIEINEE
of Operations outside Hong Kong IR =R — — (5,215) — (5,215)
Total Comprehensive Income 2 E =B (42,957) (63,472) (5,215) (503)  (112,147)
Inter-Fund Transfers (Note d) Ao (fitd) (18,854) (4,958) — — (23,812)
Balance at 30 June 2023 20236 A30H K
and 1 July 2023 2023F7A1H4&8% 2,412,389 1,684,137 3,472 5,744 4,105,742
Surplus/(Deficit) for the Year B, (%)
Transferred from/(to) the Statement el e
of Comprehensive Income NEZR (BE) 47,163 56,675 (119) 103,719
Other Comprehensive Income Efb 2wl
Exchange Differences on Translation — E & BIFEINGE
of Operations outside Hong Kong ZEHEE — — (371) — (371)
Total Comprehensive Income 2HEN AR 47,163 56,675 (371) (119) 103,348
Inter-Fund Transfers (Note d) Ee®EE (fitd) (16,697) (900) —  (17,597)
Balance at 30 June 2024 20246 A30 & 2,442,855 1,739,912 3,101 5,625 4,191,493
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13 Other Funds (continued)

HtEL »

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf ##R &K K5

The University X2

Self- Fair Value
financing Donations Gains/(Losses)
Activities and on Other
Fund Benefactions Investments Total
Note (a) Note (b)
HiREN
REEE B AREE
HEE® RE® WHE (BB Bt
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (A FEITEr) B3 (a) Bz (b)
Balance at 1 July 2022 2022F7 A1 8&8 2,415,142 1,752,567 6,247 4,173,956
Deficit for the Year Transferred to the ERE2mRERD
Statement of Comprehensive Income KEFEE (24,266) (63,472) (503) (88,241)
Inter-Fund Transfers (Note d) EewEE (Witd) (18,922) (4,958) — (23,880)
Balance at 30 June 2023 20236 A30A K
and 1 July 2023 20237 HA1B848 2,371,954 1,684,137 5,744 4,061,835
Surplus/(Deficit) for the Year BEe/ (2)
Transferred from/(to) the Statement ENELERE LY
of Comprehensive Income AFEERH (FHE) 76,682 56,675 (119) 133,238
Inter-Fund Transfers (Note d) Ee®EE (Katd) (16,697) (900) — (17,597)
Balance at 30 June 2024 2024 6 A30 A&ER 2,431,939 1,739,912 5,625 4,177,476

Notes:

(a) Self-financing Activities Fund

Self-financing Activities Fund represents the reserves generated from self-financing programmes and activities.

(b) Donations and Benefactions
Donations and Benefactions represent unspent donations and related investment income. The funds will be used in accordance with
donors’ wishes, mainly for Student Support, Campus Development Projects and the University's development.

() Non-operating Reserve
Non-operating Reserve comprises exchange differences arising from translation of results of operations outside Hong Kong into Hong
Kong dollars.

(d) Inter-Fund Transfers

Inter-fund transfers represent fund transfers from Donations and Benefactions and Self-financing Activities Fund to Restricted Fund for
Research to support research projects.

it -
@) BEEBER RS
AEREER D EASHAEBENRRLERAE LS -

(b) FBR 1B RE

BREBRERDAZBRREAANKRERN - HEESERERBEZSRER  TEMFELTE REEFRABRAZER
ZH e

(o) FF=ERA R
FEERARBERBRERTERINEEZEN R -

(d) BeEE
Ho@RIEMBRRBRNEELEREECEREMRERES  BIEEMARER -
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REWE HitiRE - B RRE

The Group K2EE

14 Investment Properties, Other Property, Plant and Equipment

Ownership
Interests in
Leasehold
Land Held
for Own Use
and Other Furniture,
Properties Machinery
Leased for Construction Leasehold and
Own Use Buildings in Progress  Improvements  Equipment Total
BEBRAM
HELHE
BEBRAH
(In thousands of HiHEMEN HE e
Hong Kong dollars) (KU F&Tat) FERERER B& EEIR MELE HBERRE Eh
Cost: A
Balance at 1 July 2022 2022F7A1BE&R 1,225,408 5,339,256 1,236,604 1,555,275 2,333,408 11,689,951
Exchange Adjustments Rk (200) (7,270) — (248) (806) (8,524)
Additions ®E 14,884 221 1,143,889 60,792 250,314 1,470,100
Transfers B — — (170,470) 151,508 18,962 —
Disposals BB (489) — — (29,371) (86,292) (116,152)
Balance at 30 June 2023 20236 A30AK
and 1 July 2023 202371848 1,239,603 5,332,207 2,210,023 1,737,956 2,515,586 13,035,375
Exchange Adjustments I 5, 3% (16) (576) — (21) (64) (677)
Additions HE 74,968 55,034 1,278,966 40,199 192,084 1,641,251
Transfers B — 179,833 (292,533) 112,700 —
Disposals BIE — — — (30,065)  (71,809) (101,874)
At 30 June 2024 7202456 A30H 1,314,555 5,566,498 3,196,456 1,860,769 2,635,797 14,574,075
Accumulated Depreciation: REHE :
Balance at 1 July 2022 2022F7 A1 B & 290,810 2,391,474 — 1,247,139 1,931,398 5,860,821
Exchange Adjustments Rk (82) (2,176) — (84) (800) (3,142)
Charge for the Year REEHE 72,204 138,748 — 193,719 179,100 583,771
Written Back on Disposals /&I # [0 (489) — — (29,356)  (84,956) (114,801)
Balance at 30 June 2023 202356 A30HK
and 1 July 2023 2023F7R18%&8 362,443 2,528,046 — 1,411,418 2,024,742 6,326,649
Exchange Adjustments IR (16) (195) — (12) (63) (286)
Charge for the Year REEHE 71,967 140,127 — 151,124 221,765 584,983
Written Back on Disposals &2 #[g] — — — (28,101)  (71,662)  (99,763)
At 30 June 2024 7202456 A30H 434,394 2,667,978 — 1,534,429 2,174,782 6,811,583
Net Book Value: IREFHE ¢
At 30 June 2024 7202456 HA30H 880,161 2,898,520 3,196,456 326,340 461,015 7,762,492
At 30 June 2023 720236 A30H 877,160 2,804,161 2,210,023 326,538 490,844 6,708,726
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14 Investment Properties, Other Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)
REYE - HhiRE - BBREE =

The University X2

Ownership
Interests in
Leasehold
Land Held
for Own Use
and Other Furniture,
Properties Machinery
Leased for Investment Construction Leasehold and
Own Use properties  Buildings in Progress Improvements Equipment Total
(Note 1) (Note 1)
BEE AR
HELHR
BEB AN
HitiE
WEH HE R4 -
(In thousands of FRERERES REME ®E EEIR WEEE HBERRE Fob
Hong Kong dollars) (K FEat) (Ktat1) (Hat1)
Cost: B
Balance at 1July 2022 202247 B 1H#&# 1,192,908 252,639 5,111,088 1,236,604 1,418,761 2,254,752 11,466,752
Exchange Adjustments IE 5 R (200) — — — — — (200)
Additions 2E 11,012 — 221 1,143,889 58,833 248,197 1,462,152
Transfers B — — — (170,470 151,508 18,962 —
Disposals i=p=d — — — — (29,371)  (86,200)  (115,571)
Balance at 30 June 2023 202356 H30H K
and 1 July 2023 2023F7A1H48 1,203,720 252,639 5,111,309 2,210,023 1,599,731 2,435,711 12,813,133
Exchange Adjustments TS (15) — — — — — (15)
Additions b 72,367 — 55,035 1,278,966 39,927 189,372 1,635,667
Transfers (84 — — 179,833 (292,533) 112,700 — —
Disposals BB — — — — (30,065) (69,741) (99,806)
At 30 June 2024 202456 A30H 1,276,072 252,639 5,346,177 3,196,456 1,722,293 2,555,342 14,348,979
Accumulated 28
Depreciation: e
Balance at 1 July 2022 2022467 B 1H#&& 275,190 117,404 2,342,810 — 1,145,650 1,880,420 5,761,474
Exchange Adjustments ERTAEEE (82) — — — — — (82)
Charge for the Year REEHE 66,543 27,097 133,790 — 166,448 169,259 563,137
Written Back on Disposals &% &[] — — — — (29,356)  (84,877) (114,233)
Balance at 20236 A30H K
30 June 2023 2023%781H
and 1 July 2023 @e 341,651 144,501 2,476,600 — 1,282,742 1,964,802 6,210,296
Exchange Adjustments BE i S 2 (15) — — — - - (15)
Charge for the Year REEHE 66,151 3,004 135,246 — 147,565 215,681 567,647
Written Back on Disposals /&2 0] — — — (28,101) (69,594)  (97,695)
At 30 June 2024 M2024%6 A30H 407,787 147,505 2,611,846 — 1,402,206 2,110,889 6,680,233
Net Book Value: REFHE ¢
At 30 June 2024 ®202456A30H 868,285 105,134 2,734,331 3,196,456 320,087 444,453 7,668,746
At 30 June 2023 7202346 A30H 862,069 108,138 2,634,709 2,210,023 316,989 470,909 6,602,837
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Investment Properties, Other Property, Plant and Equipment (continued
REYE - HbRE - HBREE =

Note:

(1) As at 30 June 2024, the University's investment properties of carrying amount $366 million (2023: $376 million) comprise a leasehold
land, a building and leasehold improvements located in Hong Kong for rent to a subsidiary at a market price. As at 30 June 2024, the
fair value of the University’s investment properties was approximately $650 million (2023: $624 million), which was determined using
market comparison approach by referencing the latest rateable value of the investment properties.

The fair value measurement falls under level 2 in the fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement.
et -
(1) FA2024F6 B30 H + KREMIRAYEIRE(E3186,600&7T (20234 : 3187,600&87T) BEATELAL — HBARH—IEBLRE

BOBEELTH  —REFLREEYMEREE - R2024F6 A30F - FATSHBLES RN (AI2EZRENMESFORNEREMBE) 4
EREBNREWMENRABELKA6185,00087T (20234 : 6182,40087T)

AR EBENGESBN [ EENGERELENIF 135 [ALEENTE/FPRAEENRAEERRAE2R
Right-of-use Assets
EREEE
The analysis of the carrying value of right-of-use assets by class of underlying asset is as follows:

RIAREERN D BNEREEERBEITNOT -

Note The Group KZ2%g8 The University X2
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (KAF#ETat) Mtat 2024 2023 2024 2023
Ownership Interests in Leasehold Land #F{EE B E i
and Buildings Held for Own Use, RS WA e
Carried at Cost less Accumulated BREARRRETE
Depreciation and Impairment Loss, EREEEAR -
with remaining term of: IWERTARAY - (i)
— between 10 and 50 years — BERAEER
in Hong Kong 102504 3,671,135 3,552,360 3,305,205 3,175,975
— between 10 and 50 years — BASEINEE
outside Hong Kong 10E504F 59,055 61,314 — —
Other Properties Leased for Own Use, MHE{EARMEMYIZE -
Carried at Depreciated Cost RITERRATIR (ii) 46,005 64,619 36,615 52,556
Machinery and Equipment under FEEMBFER AN
Other Properties Leased for TREY T o as
Own Use, Carried at KR - RITERAR
Depreciated Cost IR (iii) 2,486 3,028 — —
Investment Properties, Carried at Cost R &%
less Accumulated Depreciation AR EEITE
and Impairment Loss, EmEBBRAR -
with remaining term of: REATHA -
— between 10 and 50 years — BAABRENHEER
in Hong Kong 10£504F — - 365,930 376,385

3,778,681 3,681,321 3,707,750 3,604,916
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14 Investment Properties, Other Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)

REWE HitiRE - B RRE =

(a) Right-of-use Assets (continued)
FHEEE ()

The analysis of expense items in relation to leases recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income is as follows:
REEEEEBERNBERNAIBESTAT ¢
Depreciation Charge of right-of-use assets by class of underlying asset:

AT RIZEERRIDENERREENTE

The Group X2 Eg8 The University X2
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (KXF&Tat) 2024 2023 2024 2023
Ownership Interests in HEE A
Leasehold Land and Buildings HELHEREN
Held for Own Use A R 159,462 158,083 147,130 145,673
Investment Properties A — — 10,455 34,549
Other Properties Leased for Own Use THEEE BHEM Y 52,090 52,326 46,816 47,208
Other Machinery and Equipment H A28 KR 542 543 — —
212,094 210,952 204,401 227,430
The Group X2%g The University X2
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (A FXETat) 2024 2023 2024 2023
Interest on Lease Liabilities HEEEHNFE 1,708 2,518 896 1,614
Expense relating to Short-term Leases ARG HHENHS — 899 — 899

During the year, additions of right-of-use assets for the Group and the University related to capitalised lease payments
payable under new/renewed tenancy agreements amount to $34,192,000 (2023: $11,884,000) and $31,592,000 (2023:
$11,013,000) respectively.

Details of total cash outflow for leases and the maturity analysis of lease liabilities are set out in notes 24(c) and 31.

RER - REZELABERHE BHENEEHEMENMENRERE  SEREEEDRIEMN3,41982F T (2023
% :1,18884F T) &3,15982F 7L (20234 : 1,101 8E3F L) °

HEMNRERHEENEEE BB DD RIS 24(c) X371 -
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Investment Properties, Other Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)

REWE HithiRE - B RRE =

Right-of-use Assets (continued)

EREEE (&)

Notes:

(i) Ownership interests in Leasehold Land and Buildings Held for Own Use

The Group and the University hold leasehold land and buildings for teaching, research and related purpose. The Group and the University
are the registered owner of these property interests, including the whole or part of undivided share in the underlying land.

(ii) Other Properties Leased for Own Use

The Group and the University have the right to use other properties for teaching and research, offices and warehouse through tenancy
agreements. The leases typically run for an initial period of more than 1 year to 5 years.

Some leases include an option to renew the lease for an additional period after the end of the contract term. The Group and the
University assess at lease commencement date whether it is reasonably certain to exercise the extension options. If the Group and the
University are not reasonably certain to exercise the extension options, the future lease payments during the extension periods are not
included in the measurement of lease liabilities. At 30 June 2024, the Group has included liabilities of $2,739,000 (2023: $3,409,000)
for the optional period of those leases in lease liabilities whereas the University has no lease with optional period as at 30 June 2024
and 2023.

(iii) Other Machinery and Equipment

The Group and the University lease other machinery and equipment under leases expiring around 9 years. A lease include an option
to purchase the leased equipment at the end of the lease term at a price deemed to be a bargain option. None of the leases includes
variable lease payments.

B3
()%W@%mﬁ B3 AR M T R
REBEEABRATHRRSERS  MELIARS - ASBERABARSVEEANEMELSA - EROELRRHH T
\ﬂmmﬁimo

(i) MEFEAMEMBYE
REBBRASERBEEESOEREMMEERT  BRAERBERE - HEHR-—RBI1FULESF -
HEBREANMTAREN —RBEINIFNEER - AEERBLASEEE R GEEE A/ B REITEZEARE - IS

i¥5

BREASTHRABMETITEZEERIR  EZEERNRREENR TS BEEEEL BN ERN - £2024F6 A30H - K2
£REE273 89T T (20234 ¢ 340%9?7&)%@\\HHF?E’JEE“%E%ﬂf%ﬁm AR ETE 2024 F % 2023 6 A 30 B I M ER SRR
G

PEER Khﬁﬁi*‘ﬁﬁm%%& R HEH-RORIF - HEBENHEFHERNERBEEAZEBERANEBRBEHRER
BERERE - HESNh L EAIZBHENRK -
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15 Intangible Assets

P
BREE
The Group X2
Standard
Development Brand Customer Operating

(In thousands of Cost Name Relationship Software Procedures Total

Hong Kong dollars) (X FXETat) BB A b BEFB#% B BEEEEER et
Cost: R
At 1 July 2022, ®2022%7A/A18 -

30 June 2023, 2023%6H30H -

1 July 2023 and 2023F7HA1HK

30 June 2024 2024%6 A30H 66 65,302 1,335 3,428 1,958 72,089
Accumulated 2%

Amortisation: ey
At 1 July 2022 M20229F7 418 66 — 1,335 2,815 1,958 6,174
Charge for the Year NG — — — 613 — 613
At 30 June 2023, 720234 6H30H -

1 July 2023 and 2023F7R18 R

30 June 2024 20246 A30H 66 — 1,335 3,428 1,958 6,787
Net Book Value: R EFHE ¢
At 30 June 2024 7202456 H30H — 65,302 — — — 65,302
At 30 June 2023 7202346 A30H — 65,302 — — — 65,302

The amortisation charge for the year ended 30 June 2023 was included in the operating expenses of Other Activities in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income of the Group.

For intangible assets with indefinite life, the recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or not there is any indicator
of impairment (see note 16).

BE2023F6 A30A L FEHHECBEAREREN2ANAERPEMENEERP -

REERHRNETVEE  BERSGFERENSR  RALkeBEFOSELGE (A2 16) -
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Goodwill
GRS

The goodwill on the acquisition of CityU Veterinary Health Group Company Limited (“CVHG") represents value obtainable
from synergy with the Group and the opportunity to efficiently bring into the large, well-equipped, flagship veterinary clinic
and veterinary professional expertise for the needs of students taking the relevant veterinary medicine programmes and
development of the Jockey Club College of Veterinary Medicine and Life Sciences of the University.

W ASMEEARA UWK S ) FTEENAERARAKSERRAERRNT AR —IRERK - RIBE2HIE
EAEDZ BB EXREEMSROBRARE NS - REEPVEBERENELERAARENEFTSIMEE Rt
MEBRMBEERRAT -

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (A FETat) The Group KB %88
Cost: AR
At 1 July 2022, 30 June 2023, A2022%F7 818 - 20236 H30H -

1 July 2023 and 30 June 2024 202357H1HK202456 A30H 33,471

Impairment tests for cash-generating units containing goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite life
Goodwill and brand name are generated from the acquisition of a subsidiary which is the Group’s cash-generating unit
(CGU) identified according to the operating segment as follows:

BEHENREELBEARREERAHRNELEENRERR
BEEDEEERE -HNBARRMES  YERNATABREREENHE D RASELEN

The Group X2 XE8

Note
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (KXF&Tat) Kat 2024 2023
Goodwill (SRS 33,471 33,471
Brand Name o b 15 65,302 65,302

98,773 98,773
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16 Goodwiill (continued)

[CEEED

Veterinary Clinic

The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations use cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by management, covering a five-year period. Key assumptions in the
financial budgets include revenue growth rates, staff costs as a percentage of revenue and the discount rate. Both the
revenue growth rate and staff costs as a percentage of revenue are based on past experience and future plans. Cash flows
beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using an estimated weighted average growth rate of 3.0% (2023: 3.0%)
which is consistent with the forecast included in industry reports. The estimated weighted average growth rate used do
not exceed the long-term average revenue growth rates for the business in which the CGU operates. The cash flows are
discounted using a rate of 18.6% (2023: 18.6%). The discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating to
the relevant segments.

BB

ReELBMZ I HECERIEZFERERNE - ZAEH/ARKBCETEBMZNAFHYRBEEERSRERA - 8
BEENETZRZEBBRAEREER RRANB AT EBENARITIRE - WAEERIZEWANE S LT EBEK
FABRBBAELBRARKEE - MERENRSRELN2RBMATTINETIIIEREI.0% (20234F - 3.0%)HE - LER
KETEREPOTER 2 - EEFIINETHOERIYEBHNREEFBMEEEFENRATHRALRE - 113
SRELUITEE18.6% (20234F : 18.6%) FTH - 2 FEAMATMITIE R LK RMABREF S M ERR
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Investments
rRE
Note The Group KRZ%E§ The University X2
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (X FETat) Bt 2024 2023 2024 2023
Financial assets RAREEEA
measured at FVPL BRITENEREE
Debt Securities B E S
Listed in Hong Kong EEELET — 4,477 — 4,477
Listed outside Hong Kong EHBEIIN T 1,290,358 1,502,355 1,290,358 1,502,355
Unlisted JEET 659,115 892,385 659,115 892,385
1,949,473 2,399,217 1,949,473 2,399,217
Equity Securities B 8 %
Listed in Hong Kong EEE LT 394,741 530,175 394,741 530,175
Listed outside Hong Kong EEBIRIN 649,863 715,817 649,556 715,122
Unlisted (Note a) JE b (Kfata) 29,285 18,153 5,626 5,745
1,073,889 1,264,145 1,049,923 1,251,042
Derivative Financial Instruments THEEMIA
Receivables (*) (Note d) B REUERIE (%) (Kt d) 65,747 65,884 65,747 65,884
Investment Funds (Note b) wEES (Mitb) 3,151,717 4,066,927 3,151,717 4,066,927
Other Investments (Note ¢) HE&E (fatc) 93,212 91,066 — —
Total Financial Assets in Investments &RV EER E1E5E 6,334,038 7,887,239 6,216,860 7,783,070
Derivative Financial Instruments EEHBMIA
Payables (*) (Note d) WRERTRIE (%) (et d) 26 (33,569) (56,242) (33,569) (56,242)
Net Total B 6,300,469 7,830,997 6,183,291 7,726,828
Current Portion RENTD 6,211,234 7,777,325 6,211,234 7,777,325
Non-current portion FEREE D 122,804 109,914 5,626 5,745
6,334,038 7,887,239 6,216,860 7,783,070

* The Group and the University have foreign exchange forward contracts and other derivative financial instruments as at 30 June 2024,

which have settlement dates between July 2024 and January 2026. The notional amounts of these foreign exchange forward contracts
and other derivative financial instruments were $4,118,367,000 and $1,019,741,000 (2023: $3,007,199,000 and $1,241,982,000)
respectively. The fair value of financial assets arising from foreign exchange forward contracts and other derivative financial instruments
were $26,373,000 and $39,374,000 (2023: $34,229,000 and $31,655,000) respectively, and the fair value of financial liabilities
arising from foreign exchange forward contracts and other derivative financial instruments were $6,871,000 and $26,698,000 (2023:
$12,899,000 and $43,343,000) respectively.

The Group’s and the University’s foreign exchange forward contracts and currency swaps between USD and HKD, CAD, EUR, GBP,
JPY and other currencies have notional amounts of $1,718,807,000 (2023: $1,201,498,000), $120,726,000 (2023: $50,186,000),
$1,083,631,000 (2023: $581,667,000), $212,298,000 (2023: $209,073,000), $344,418,000 (2023: $462,301,000) and $540,522,000
(2023: $497,720,000) respectively.

KEFEMAER2024F6 A30HEHALETH2024F7 FE20265F 1 AR HMIMNERBANMEMITESRI T B - 5L iNERE
BHREMTESRMTAZAEALTE SR A41181,8368 7 F L 10181,974&1F L (20234 « HF1A30E719&9TF L1218
4,19882F L) - HINERBAONMEMITEeRMT AEENSREEAABEN B A2,637&3TLiM3,93784F L (20234 -
DRA3,42289FLf3,16585F T) - AINERANMEMITEER T AEENEREBEANEBED FA6878 1 FITH2,669
B8 (20234 : HRIAE1,28989FTH4,334E3F L) °

AEBEBNABEETIETEBIT - T - BT~ B8 - BEMEMEE 2 MOINERBEEOMINEHEIEY  HEBASES T
A17181,8808 7 T 71 (20234F : 121814988 T T) ~ 1182,0728 6 T £ (20234 : 5,018F6 T 7T) ~ 10188,363& 1 T £ (2023
F:5{88,1668 7T L) » 2181,22988 T 7 (20234 : 218907 B3 T 7T) » 3184,4418 8T 7T (20234 : 4186,23081T7T) &
5{84,05282 T 7T (20234 : 4189,772&7T) »
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(a)

Investments (continued)

BRE =)

Unlisted Equity Securities

¥ EHRIDES
Name of Particulars of Percentage Percentage
Institutional Place of Issued and Held by the Held by the
Entities Operation Paid Up Capital University subsidiary Principal Activity
MERE
KEEE> BRTRABM REREZ BEZ
=g ReghE BEAFE Bol Bok FEXEHK
Joint Universities Computer Hong Kong 8 Shares 12.5% — Information Technology Services
Centre Limited
REBHEBRT O B 8% BB R
Joint University Programmes Hong Kong Limited by Guarantee 12.5% — Coordination and control of the
Admissions System Joint Admission System
REBMSBERS B BIRER Toh 3R FFE I Bk & 1R A R A
The University Sports Hong Kong Limited by Guarantee 9.1% — Organising sports games and
Federation of Hong Kong, competitions
China Limited
FAEEARBERE B BRIER AR E BRI
BRAF]
Vitargent International Hong Kong 37,446 ordinary shares — 0.25% Biotechnology research and testing
Holdings Limited and 24,100 preferred
shares
B 37,446 %I R (3 LR TR
24,1008 %k
Cellomics Holdings (BVI) Hong Kong 40,578,823 shares — 0.39% Investment holding, research and
Limited development, production and
sales and consultancy in
pharmaceutical, biotech and
healthcare related business
B 40,578,823 RELELER - HRRURE - £E
MIHERREEBREY - £
Bk ERBEREER
MediConCen Limited Hong Kong 2,306,730 ordinary — 0.60% Provision of claim automation
shares and service to insurance market by
1,499,419 preferred using blockchain by mobile
shares platform
EERAR B 2,306,730 B RAEREHN  BBRDT AR
1,499,419M8 %R HE BRI RERS
DAYTA Al HOLDINGS Hong Kong 4,990,087,199 ordinary — 0.90% Provision of video analytics for
LIMITED shares and business
9,912,801 preferred
shares
BB 4,990,087,199 Ei@ ik R RREZEDIT

129,912,801 1B 5 1%
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Investments (continued)

B’E @

Unlisted Equity Securities (continued)

FLEHRBES (B
Name of Particulars of Percentage Percentage
Institutional Place of Issued and Held by the Held by the
Entities Operation Paid Up Capital University subsidiary Principal Activity
o)A
HEEE BBRITRABMN REFHZ BE2
8 REE BARFE Bt Bolk EBEHR
Farm66 Global Ltd. Hong Kong 7,805 ordinary shares — 1.00% Operation of indoor agricultural
and 2,179 preferred factory and trading of
shares agricultural products
B 7,805 E AR & EEENKHBIESRIEERER
21798 %K
Arbele Investment Limited  Hong Kong 1,665,812 shares — 0.14% Research and development of
innovative cancer
immunotherapeutic products
and molecular diagnostic tests
for the prevention, interception
and treatment of
advanced-staged cancers
AR 1,665,812 % e RIFTRRIE R R R E RN D
PETAR - TR - WEFDR
B HEE
CARFUL GROUP LIMITED Hong Kong 10,000 shares — 8.00% Provision of intelligent car and
and yacht sharing platforms
Mainland
China
BHEEBARAR EER 10,000 % RMHERIEREREAZTE
Hh B R BE
Amorv Co. Ltd. Hong Kong 50,000 ordinary shares — 0.17% Sleep health technology
and 6,185 preferred development and service
shares provider
) 50,000 & AR & 06 55 R B 2 B R ) 35 R SR AL AR
6,185 5%
BOXS LIMITED Hong Kong 10,527 shares — 2.00% Provision of information technology
&HB 10,527 % WFEMBHER
Locolla Limited Hong Kong 204,000 shares — 1.96% Provision of shared-bike service
N 204,000 REHZBHRY
Alfred24 Holdings Limited  Hong Kong 13,368 ordinary shares — 0.45% Trading of smart lockers, provision
and 10,626 preferred of relevant software support and
shares maintenance services, provision
of smart locker solutions services
and investment holding
B 13,368 @A R PGSR - AR SR A

10,6261 % /%

ARTS - 2R EEME AR R D) ZEBRTE e
BEER
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(a)

Investments (continued)

BRE =)

Unlisted Equity Securities (continued)

FLEHRIBES ()
Name of Particulars of Percentage Percentage
Institutional Place of Issued and Held by the Held by the
Entities Operation Paid Up Capital University subsidiary Principal Activity
ME AR

HEER ERTRAN RERHFZ BEZ
£ REWE BEARFE Ak BAk TEEK
KERERRERATR Mainland 2,114,720 ordinary — 1.64% Provision of Intelligent forklift,

China shares Intelligent bus, Intelligent Robot

solution
o B KB 2,114,720 % @A% RRMERENE - BRIERE - B
TR A B fRIR T 5
NOVELTE TECHNOLOGY Hong Kong, 4,000 shares — 3.00% Provision of robotics solutions
INTERNATIONAL LIMITED Macau, services
Malaysia,
us
BB R 4,000/ TR A FE R 77 R AR TS

2R PEEE &2

EH
VISTA INNOTECH LIMITED ~ Hong Kong 43,013 ordinary shares — 1.60% Provision of research and

and 263 preferred
shares

development services in relating
to different types of intellectual
products and patent holding

BB 43,013 FmAR K TR R FAEY F R o M B AR A
263185/ HE B BB 5 28 AR 75
Theyta Limited Hong Kong 16,410 shares — 2.50% Provision of data-sharing and
community communication
services
HE 16,410 % REER AL RERRE
FYTEIR B AR AR Hong Kong 1,805,503 shares — 2.13% Sale of new products and materials
and related to electricity-free cooling
Mainland technology, such as paints, films,
China textiles, ceramics, and the
provision of related
energy-saving technical services
N 1,805,503 % & BB RS RIMBR R E m
B A FOMEL - amzR - SBIR - A

fn - FBE MR AR MY ERRE eIl
AR5
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Investments (continued)

®B’E @

Involvement with Unconsolidated Structured Entities

*ﬁékﬁﬁgnnﬁﬁ?zg

The Group and the University have concluded that the unlisted open-ended investment funds in which they invest, but that
do not consolidate, meet the definition of structured entities because:

— the voting rights in the funds are not dominant rights in deciding who controls them because the rights related to
administrative tasks only;

— each fund’s activities are restricted by its prospectus; and

— the funds have narrow and well-defined objectives to provide investment opportunities to investors.
REEBIRBERTIRE  REEARGEARZIFLTANAREESNAEBER 2 EE

— RERFESNRAERETHREBER  WIPRTEAXTED HREESNTEEN

— BRERESNEHHIEZENEIRRMES K&

— ZREESAKEMEERENER  MEHKREKETREE -

The table below describes the types of structured entities that the Group and the University do not consolidate but in which
they hold an interest.

TREMAKBBERASZRESARBREARANEEERER -

Interest Held by the Group

Type of Structured Entity Nature and Purpose and the University

HEEEEs HEMAR REEBRASFENERS

Investment funds To manage assets on behalf of third party Investments in units issued by the funds
REES investors and generate fees for the WEBRESMEITHEM

investment manager
REE=ZFREECEEERRREK
EEERRE

These vehicles are financed through the
issue of units to investors

IR T ARAREEETHEMLMESR
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(b)

()

Investments (continued)

BRE =)

Involvement with Unconsolidated Structured Entities (continued)

*ﬁékﬁﬂgnnﬁﬁ?z E4 ;ﬁx (Zx

The table below sets out interest held by the Group and the University in unconsolidated structured entities. The maximum
exposure to loss is the carrying amount of the financial assets held.

TRINTAREBBRASHRGAARNGEERMHFENERD - SANBERARBAEREEZRMEE -

The Group and the University

RERERAZ
Number of Aggregate Total Net Assets of Carrying Amount Included in
Investee Funds Investee Funds Current Financial Asset
HREESHE HREESHFEE BEERDEREEZIREESHE
(In thousands of
Hong Kong dollars) (A FETat) 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
Exchange-traded Fund XRZFEEE® 20 1  8,805,180,996 128,871,870 728,033 124,924
Unit Trust Fund BAEEES 23 34 795,918,752 1,179,762,494 2,423,684 3,942,003

3,151,717 4,066,927

During the year, the Group and the University did not provide financial support to unconsolidated structured entities and
have no intention of providing financial or other support. The Group and the University can redeem units in the Investment
Funds upon request.

EP\] C RERBIABRBRHEVBIEARGEARNGEER  TEERHAMBEIEMIIE - AKERB R AETH
ZNREE LA R EES -

Other Investments

Hittin &

HK Tech 300 is a large-scale flagship innovation and entrepreneurship programme organised by the University for aspiring
entrepreneurs among the University’s students, alumni, research staff and others to launch start-ups and ignite their
entrepreneurship journey. The University has instituted the HK Tech 300 Angel Fund under the HK Tech 300 Programme.
Qualified start-ups will receive up to $1,000,000 each. The University aims to enhance the business development of these
start-up and boost innovation technology in Hong Kong and beyond by encouraging practical applications of the University’s
research and technology output.

HK Tech 300 @ KRR —TBARAIFAIZTE - ENERHBLAENABEL KK - ARABUREMA TR
SHBIAF SRR 2 HIS AR © KEHHK Tech 30058 FE832 T HK Tech 300 K fEE S - AERHITAIRQ
FEHEEEEI00BITMIRE - REHEIFVAIAGH —PHRER  USE eI ASMMERRRFMEEA
BERER - (REFBBRIBINIBIRIEE -
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Investments (continued)

®B’E @

(d) Specific Instruments — Derivative Financial Instruments

BEIR —T&E&MIA

0]

@i

Futures and Forward Contracts

HEREHAEHN

Futures and forward contracts are commitments either to purchase or sell a designated financial instrument, currency,
commodity or an index at a specified future date for a specified price and may be settled in cash or another financial

asset. Futures contracts have little credit risk because the counterparties are futures exchanges. Forward contracts result
in credit exposure to the counterparty.

Futures and forward contracts both result in exposure to market risk based on changes in market prices relative to
contracted amounts. Market risks arise due to the possible movement in foreign currency exchange rates, indices, and
securities’ values underlying these instruments. In addition, because of the low margin deposits normally required in
relation to notional contract sizes, a high degree of leverage may be typical of a futures or forward trading account.
As a result, a relatively small price movement in an underlying futures or forward contract may result in substantial
losses to the Investment Funds. Forward contracts are generally subject to liquidity risk.

Notional amounts are the underlying reference amounts to stock exchange indices, equities and foreign currencies
upon which the fair value of the futures, and forward contracts traded by the Group are based. While notional amounts
do not represent the current fair value and are not necessarily indicative of the future cash flows of the Group’s futures
and forward contracts, the underlying price changes in relation to the variables specified by the notional amounts affect
the fair value of these derivative financial instruments.

HEMERENEFARZHEEENARBANFEERBEERLERENERTA - B  Bmalds8 IURE
FEMEMEELAE - EAOPANERARRR ) BABEFRMERSZM - BEHANRAZRZGINEE
[\ o

HIEMERE RSN TSERENANESBENTHERE(C - TERARKEERE TAMNINEER  JEHMEFE
REATBEEE S - SN - ANEZENREFSBFELESNSTER  SENERRERETARUNAEHENR
ZIRP - At - HEMEREMS R NERZEDAESBHZESAEANRNKX - BHEHN—RAZRDE
SRR o

FZETHENEFR DAY - BOMINEN2E SR - DASERBERNE RN SAE 2 A EE -
HEALBEBRTIRRENNAABE TP ERRASEENHENEME NN RKEDRE - BREZEDHE
TR AENERERESEFEELTESR T ANAREE-

Swap Agreements

1= HA 1%

A swap agreement involves the exchange by the Group with another party of their respective commitments to pay
or receive cash flows. Swap agreements and similar transactions can be individually negotiated and structured to
include exposure to a variety of different types of investments or market factors. Depending on their structures, swap
agreements may increase or decrease the Group's exposure to long- or short-term interest rates, foreign currency

values, mortgage securities, corporate borrowing rates, or other factors such as security prices, inflation rates or the
volatility of an index or one or more securities.

im s LA KSRREES — & B AGENREERER S IRER R o 17 B MREE 5 A A FEF R
B UESEETARENKEIMERE - REEGE - FHHR RN KEEREMHNER - 8K
HIg R IR R SNV E(E - R ERRES - CENEBENXREMEE - MEHER  BRISEHE-AXZ A
EHFHN B ©

City University of Hong Kong & m A&
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Investments in Subsidiaries
B ATRIIRE

The University X2

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (X FETat) 2024 2023

Capital Contribution
less Impairment Losses BT AR IR EEE 58,293 62,948
Unlisted Shares, at Cost FE EH AR (BRBCAR) 309,523 277,523
367,816 340,471

The following list contains the particulars of the Group's subsidiaries which principally affected the results, assets and
liabilities of the Group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.

All of these are controlled subsidiaries as defined under note 1(d) and have been consolidated into the Group’s financial
statements.

CBEMBENAREBENBEARNE - RRIN2H - AKE 2RO AEBE

LI RMEE 1(d) TERNZIREMB AR - YEBAEABEENMBERERA -

Place of
Incorporation/

Percentage of Issued

Particulars of and Paid-Up Capital/

Name of Establishment and Issued Capital and Registered Capital held Principal
Company Operations Paid Up Capital by the University Activities
RS, R R EBRTRER REBEFSRITREN
NEEH fsd=$:ch BAERFEE B EAMEAZEALE EEER
CityU Enterprises Limited Hong Kong 80,010 shares 100% Investment Holding and
Provision of Management
Services to Group
Companies
PWARLEARRAR e 80,010/ REZERNEBREREENT
R ERRS
CityU Professional Services Limited Hong Kong Limited by Guarantee 100% Dormant
WMABEEBEMBR AT BB BRER HE
CityU Research Institute People’s Republic of HK$86,300,000 100% Research and Development
(Shenzhen) Company Limited* China
WARHRFCE ORI BR L hEE AR 86,300,000 7T o R f g
CityU Research Limited Hong Kong 2 shares 100% Technology Licensing
WAMEAR AT B 28R B
CityU Veterinary Health Group Hong Kong 1,000,000 shares 100% Veterinary Clinic
Company Limited
HMAREMEZEFRLD i 1,000,000 % B2
CityU Veterinary Diagnostic Hong Kong 1,000 shares 100% Research and Diagnostic
Laboratory Company Limited Service
WABYEERBARAF S 1,000 % o 2l AR
CityU HK Innovation Limited Hong Kong 100 shares 100% Investment Holdings
O 100 % REE

* Not audited by KPMG.
FHETEZ

SHEMEBER -
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Interest in a Joint Venture
AEDNTER

Details of the Group’s interest in a joint venture, which is accounted for using the equity method in the consolidated
financial statements, are as follows:

ASEBEREARTHED - ERAMBRRTRARDEIRE - BT

Proportion of Ownership Interest

EERELH
Form of Place of Particular of Group's

Name of Business Establishment  Issued and Effective Held by the Held by Principal
Joint Venture Structure and Business Paid Up Capital Interest University a Subsidiary Activity
BEQT e RIYREE ERITRER REBEEZ —HEAR
£18 Feg 317 ok BAEARFHE BRER REHH BE XEXEYR
HK Tech Venture Incorporated Hong Kong Registered capital 50% — 50% Investment

Investment Co. Limited HK$100 million holding
BEREIRERR AR AR A BB AMEAR1EET 50% — 50% HREZEAR

HK Tech Venture Investment Co. Limited, a joint venture in which the Group participates, is an unlisted corporate entity
whose quoted market price is not available.

BARMEREARARZRABERSENQENRR  T—HILTATF - ERAEMSERIERH -

Summarised financial information of HK Tech Venture Investment Co. Limited, adjusted for any differences in accounting
policies, and a reconciliation to the carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements, are disclosed below:

RARCMETERERRNBENBREERAFNUHENRE - REGSMHHRER LIRESBEOEIRBENT

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (A FETat) 2024 2023
Gross amounts of ERANRAREBRARN

HK Tech Venture Investment Co. Limited wmem
Total assets BEE 104,583 101,628
Total liabilities wafm 553 243
Total equity Big 104,030 101,385
Included in the above assets and liabilities: BELMEEMALE
Investment BE 1,052 1,000
Cash and cash equivalents B RIBEEEY 103,453 100,628
Profit for the year A FEF 2,644 1,799
Included in the above profit: BFE At AR
Interest income F B YA 4,287 2,087
Legal and professional fees FERBEER (1.434) (285)
Reconciliation to the Group's interest REEREEBNAIREBRAT

in HK Tech Venture Investment Co. Limited FrisfEss ¥R
Gross amounts of HK Tech Venture Investment Co. Limited's Z&/BRAEE AR AT

net assets FEESHE 104,030 101,385
Group's effective interest RERBHNERER 50% 50%
Group's share of HK Tech Venture Investment Co. Limited =~ AZ2&EpE(EEERAIREARAFN

net assets and carrying amounts of FEECHERASELERN

the Group's interest IR 558 52,015 50,693
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20 Loans Receivable

L E N

Note The Group X 2§ The University X2
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LATF#Tst) Mzt 2024 2023 2024 2023
Loans to Subsidiaries less {)ESPNGINEE /€l S
Impairment Loss — Unsecured BEEE — E\ER (a) — — 18,000 18,000
Staff Loans — Secured B E SR — BEM (b) 117,380 124,690 117,380 124,690
117,380 124,690 135,380 142,690
Receivable within 1 Year: P FERFERFRIE ¢
Loans to a Subsidiary less i)EEPNGIN = el
Impairment Loss — Unsecured IEEE — MR — — 18,000 18,000
Staff Loans — Secured W EEHR — BHEM 117,380 124,690 117,380 124,690
117,380 124,690 135,380 142,690
Notes:

(@) The loans to subsidiaries are composed of three loans to two subsidiaries. In 2018, the University has granted an unsecured and interest
payable loan of $36,000,000 to a subsidiary for the purpose of financing its start-up and operation. Interest shall be accrued annually
at the rate of 2.5% below the prime rate. The loan is repayable in annual instalments (together with any interest accrued thereon and
all other sums payable under this Loan Agreement) over a period of 10 years beginning one year after the date of the Loan Agreement.
The University reserves the right to call the loan on demand. In 2020, a supplemental agreement has been entered into between
the University and the subsidiary that the loan in full (together with any interest accrued thereon and other sums payable under the
Loan Agreement) shall be repaid in one single instalment on 28 June 2028. All other terms of the original Loan Agreement remained
unchanged and will be in full force and effect.

In 2020, the University granted another unsecured and interest bearing loan of $24,000,000 to this subsidiary for the purpose of
acquisition of equipment and supporting operations. Interest shall be accrued annually at the rate of 3.5% below the prime rate. The
loan is repayable in full in one single instalment on the date falling 120 months after the date of the Loan Agreement (together with
any interest accrued thereon and all sums payable under the Loan Agreement). The University reserves the right to call the loan on
demand. In 2018, payment of $3,600,000 was made to the University. Impairment loss for the total loan balance of $56,400,000 to
this subsidiary had been provided by the University for the year ended 30 June 2023 and the balance as at 30 June 2024 is nil (2023:
nil).

In 2019, the University granted another unsecured and interest bearing loan of $30,000,000 to another subsidiary for the purpose of
acquisition of equipment. Interest shall be accrued annually at the rate of 3.5% below the prime rate. The loan is repayable in full in
one single instalment on the date falling 120 months after the date of the Loan Agreement (together with any interest accrued thereon
and all sums payable under the Loan Agreement). The University reserves the right to call the loan on demand. During the year ended
30 June 2021, the subsidiary repaid $12,000,000 to the University. The remaining balance is amounted at $18,000,000 as at 30 June
2023 and 2024.

et -

(@) MBARERBE =25  RETWHEMBATE - 120185 - KEREM3,600 S THEEMFLERT —HHBLRR - AEERS
REBES - FSIAMEERER25% BFFHE - RZERCERETAEANSRERGNAMEEMENOERE) AEERGHNER
FIR—FREDI0FTHDMBE - AEEREREIEERN - N20205F - REBHEUMBELRRI] —DERHA  ZE2ERCER
EAIEFAE RERAEKAME LMEMNESHE) BE2028F6 A28 —RIEBE - MEERAERG VAN GEREFNE L ZE
R -

20204 » KERE RS —$24008 TERXMABERTHEMBAG > BIEREERNEEELES - FIBNEEFZR3.5%IRF
TE o ZEERCERAMEANERERAOAMBEEMENNEGE) BEERANEEMI20AER—SB5E - A2EH
FEREEBEEN - N20184F » 360BTE X NA AL - HF2023F6 A30R LFE - KEH B AT IR ERS5,6408TE
HOREEIE - W 202456 A0 AMHEAT (2023F 1 T) -

R2019%F » KERE S —£3,0008 TERMTEER TS —HMBAR - AIEEEESE - FBUEREFERRE3.5% LFTHE - %
SR ERIMEAFELERANNEEMENNSE) BEEEFANETRI20EAER —SB5E - KEFEBEEE
BER-EHZE2021F6 A30HIEFE - ZMBRARIEEE,2008THKE - £2023F K 2024F6 A30 B FItr2 %5 1,8008
ﬁ °
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20 Loans Receivable (continued)

21

78

B E R

Notes (continued):

(b) To be qualified for a loan from the University, the applicant must be over 21 years of age and has been a staff member of the University’s
superannuation scheme for at least 4 years. The maximum amount of each staff loan is fixed at the lower of $1,800,000 and 60% of
the staff superannuation benefit entitlement. The staff loan is on 12-month term and is renewable on an annual basis. In the event of
default on repayment, the University can exercise its right to retain an amount equivalent to such indebtedness out of any amount due
to the staff member, including benefits payable from the superannuation scheme. The interest rate for staff loans has been maintained
at the level to 2.9% below the prime rate since 26 February 2020.

et () -

(o) REHBBERNHBABERRBABARESHEXE &

=5

ESNESBA 2K MEARKREERE - HBEE

E

VAFWER2ANRZHIBE - BUBRAZZSEFER180F T H
RNERAR12ME A - WA FFER - MRERARLME

R BT

TTEHER - RZERAZNBERNFR (BEAEESEM) hINGRZHIE - BB 2 ERFFIER 202062 A26 HREHARES

IR 2.9% °

Accounts Receivable, Prepayments and Others

U R ~ T IRAR H it

The Group K28

The University X2

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AF&TA) 2024 2023 2024 2023
Accounts Receivable JE S R 3N 15,418 15,806 9,783 11,221
Less: Allowance for Impairment loss &R © JB{EE BB (1,306) (1,400) — —
14,112 14,406 9,783 11,221

Prepayments, Deposits and Other AR ~ e REAM
Receivables (Note) FEN IR TR (MaE) 969,082 524,103 963,977 519,058
Amounts due from Brokers [ W s P R K 48,627 7,983 48,627 7,983
Amounts due from UGC FEWHUE SR 49,664 48,938 49,664 48,938
Amounts due from Subsidiaries i ENCIL — — 15,066 8,701
Amounts due from Related Parties JE Ui B B 79 R R 7,762 7,353 7,762 7,353
1,089,247 602,783 1,094,879 603,254
Current Portion mENE D 1,065,614 578,525 1,073,592 581,172
Non-current Portion FEMBENE D 23,633 24,258 21,287 22,082
1,089,247 602,783 1,094,879 603,254

Note:

As at 30 June 2024, the balance of Prepayments, Deposits and Other Receivables included $300 million for the subscription of investment

funds which was completed in July 2024.

GEX

202456 A30R - FEFIRK - e MEMEBRIRRNEREREIEIT  ARRBREESIN2024F7 A5HK °
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(a)

Accounts Receivable, Prepayments and Others (continved)

BURiRR - A IRRRE M =)

All the Group's and the University’s accounts receivable are expected to be recoverable within one year. Accounts receivable
are normally due within 30 days from the date of billing. Further details on the Group'’s credit policy and credit risk arising
from accounts receivable are set out in note 36(a).

All other receivable, prepayments and others under current assets are expected to be recoverable or recognised as expenses
within one year.

RERENASHANRUIRFIGTEH A £ —FRKE - BRIKRK —ARIZHE R L 30 RNBIHET - KEREBWEER
TR K MO 3R P E A B 15 B R 2 IR 62 36(a) 51 & o

PRETEREEER FTEMIRT - BNRK R EMIFRRAIE - FARERER R/

Impairment of Accounts Receivable

FEE WS B R o2 3 (L

Impairment losses in respect of accounts receivable are recorded using an allowance account unless the Group is satisfied
that recovery of the amount is remote, in which case the impairment loss is written off against accounts receivable directly.

FEWIR TR BB E BB IZ B EIRALR - EEAXEBBR AU CIZ B A L ERE - B ERES B RMERUIRK -

The movement in the allowance for impairment loss during the year, including both specific and collective loss components,
is as follows:

FRREBREEESNT (R2EH MAEAERED)

The Group X2 %E8 The University X2
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AFETat) 2024 2023 2024 2023
At 1 July M®7A1H (1,400) (1,598) — —
Reversal of Impairment Losses FRZ
during the Year B LR ERE 94 198 — —
At 30 June R6A30H (1,306) (1,400) — —

As at 30 June 2024, the Group's accounts receivable of $1,306,000 (2023: $1,400,000) were individually determined to be
impaired. The management assessed that the recovery of this receivable is remote and consequently recognised a specific
allowance for impairment loss.

20246 A30 0 - RBEBEHNBUIRFHR BRI ERRRENEFE R 13086 TT (2023F : 14087T) - BB
EIEZIR KA AT BEMEIR(R - Bt T AR RS ERE R ERE -
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(a)

80

Income Tax in the Statement of Financial Position
HBRRRPOMER

Tax Recoverable/(Payable) in the Statement of Financial Position represents:
EMBERRRPOTIRE " (BH) BERAR :

The Group XRZ%E§E The University X2

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AFEITEt) 2024 2023 2024 2023

Tax Recoverable/(Payable)

F10

at the Beginning of the Year AE, (FER) Bisk 40 (1,363) — —
Net Hong Kong Profits Tax Paid FR

during the Year E#NHEBNETFEE 192 1,619 146 135
Provision of Hong Kong Profits Tax REE

for the Year BEBNETEE (51 (87) (51) (87)
Under-provision for Hong Kong WRBAFE

Profits Tax for Prior Years BBENEHIRE (95) (129) (95) (48)
Provision for China Enterprise RERE

Income Tax PG (13) (67) (13) (67)
Net China Enterprise Income Tax Paid &R E &t

during the Year RE R ERTSTEE 13 10 13 10
Over-provision for China Enterprise  JREBEFE

Income Tax for Prior Years PR EFTIS TR — 57 — 57
Tax Recoverable FI

at the End of the Year AU B AR 86 40 —
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22 Income Tax in the Statement of Financial Position (continued)

MBERRRPOAFH @)

(b) Deferred Tax Assets/(Liabilities) Recognised
CHEIZNEEREEE (AF)

()

(ii)

The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised in the Statement of Financial Position and the movements

during the year are as follows:

EEMBRARERNBELEHBEE (AE) WAKE D RFEAZBIT

The Group KZ2%g8

Depreciation

Tax Allowance
Impairment Losses in Excess of
on Account Carried the Related
Receivable Forward Depreciation Business
(In thousands of FEUWIR TR BIEEER ERBIZE  Combination Total
Hong Kong dollars) (KU FETat) ZRE Fed i SHITE E3 gt et
Deferred Tax Arising from: BELEBIEIRE -
Balance at 1 July 2022 2022F7 A1 B&8 54 1,106 (2,544) (10,775) (12,159)
(Charged)/Credited to (30B%) FEA
the Statement of H
Comprehensive Income EnE s (54) 2,245 40 — 2,231
Balance at 30 June 2023 20236 A30HK
and 1 July 2023 20237818 &8% 3,351 (2,504) (10,775) (9,928)
Credited to the Statement of &F A
Comprehensive Income FHEEEHR — 936 2,186 — 3,122
Balance at 30 June 2024 20245 6 A 30 H#&ER 4,287 (318) (10,775) (6,806)
The University did not have any deferred tax during the years ended 30 June 2023 and 30 June 2024.
REBEHE2023F6 A30H K%2024F 6 A30BIEFE - KEWETAIELTFHE -
Reconciliation to the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position:
ARG TSR R 2 IR
(In thousands of The Group AR
Hong Kong dollars) (AFETat) 2024 2023
Net Deferred Tax Assets Recognised REF TS AR R TR
in the Statement of Financial Position EERHIBEE 3,969 847
Net Deferred Tax Liabilities Recognised R B R R
in the Statement of Financial Position EEFIEBE (10,775) (10,775)
(6,806) (9,928)
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23

(a)

(b)

82

Income Tax in the Statement of Financial Position (continued)

MBRRRPFORAEH =

Deferred Tax Assets Not Recognised

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 1(s), the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of
cumulative tax losses of $103,935,000 (2023: 101,742,000) as it is not probable that future taxable profits against which
the tax losses can be utilised will be available in the relevant tax jurisdiction and entity. The tax losses do not expire under

current tax legislation.

IRIEM AT 1(s) PRk 2 S RTIER - BB MY & RS A AT B EL AL AR A 750 765 3 152 2 A6 AR PR P RR B0 s MR A 15 s 18 2

A ABERBRNYARZEMBR RN RARBER 11839385 T (20234 1817482 T7T) HER

E o WIRRTR - BRERGEIRRBEEDR -

Inventories
78
Inventories in the Statement of Financial Position comprise:

EHBRARF2FERE

The Group K28

RIEETRRE

The University X2

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AFETat) 2024 2023 2024 2023
Raw Materials ER R 867 1,026 — —
Finished Goods SUPK R 7.437 6,987 422 732

8,304 8,013 422 732

The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an expense and included in the

Statement of Comprehensive Income is as follows:
EEIAXTHNFELECREZARSRANSESTNOT :

The Group K28

The University X2

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (KX FETat) 2024 2023 2024 2023
Raw Materials and Consumables Used B {8 3 89 R4kl KB FE 5 3,648 4,117 — —
Carrying Amount of Inventories Sold B &2 HFERESLHE 34,561 33,195 2,154 890

(Reversal of Write-down)/ (B EFEMIR),
Write-down of Inventories FE#MIR (593) 1,501 — 21
37,616 38,813 2,154 911
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(a)

(b)

Cash and Bank Deposits
RERRITENR

Cash and Cash Equivalents comprise:
ReRREEEYEE

The Group K2 &g

The University X2

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AFETat) 2024 2023 2024 2023
Deposits with Financial Institutions B TSRS 2 17 K 624,788 314,180 613,391 300,000
Cash at Banks and on Hand RITFERERD 464,563 321,409 386,681 262,423
Cash and Bank Deposits shown in MBARRAERAFIR S &
the Statement of Financial Position RITIF 1,089,351 635,589 1,000,072 562,423
Less: Time Deposit with Original R - REHIE ABA=
Maturity over Three Months A ZERFR — (1,389) — —
Cash and Cash Equivalents shown in & REXRMIIRE K
the Cash Flow Statement ReEBY 1,089,351 634,200 1,000,072 562,423

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

MEESMEENE B

The table below details changes in the Group’s and University’s liabilities from financing activities, including both cash and
non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are liabilities for which cash flows were, or future cash flows
will be, classified in the Group’s and University’s cash flow statement as cash flows from financing activities respectively:

TRFMASERRABRBEEDFE L BIERE
SHEDHH BIAKNAL R BB R FARBBRRABOR S RERTHBEETDORERE

The Group K2 The University X2

BREASIFRENNE - REZPELNABRHEABENR

Loans from
Bank Loan Lease Bank Loan Lease  a Subsidiary
— Unsecured Liabilities Total — Unsecured Liabilities — Unsecured Total
(Note 30) (Note 31) (Note 30) (Note 31) (Note 30)
RITEN RITER MEARER
(In thousands of —EER HEEE Fob —E\ER HEEE — EE M Fh
Hong Kong dollars) (UFHETat) (BtiF30)  (H1a£31) (BfiF30)  (K1a£31) (st 30)
At 1 July 2022 M2022%7A1H 100,000 109,725 209,725 100,000 91,764 22,251 214,015
Changes from MEEE
Financing Cash Flows: RE2RENEE :
Interest paid for Bank Loan EAFIRITEFHFE (2,475) —  (2,475) (2,475) — —  (2,475)
Capital Element of BERHEERSH
Lease Rentals Paid BERRAD —  (50,083) (50,083) — (46,202 —  (46,202)
Interest Element of BERHEERSH
Lease Rentals paid F B — (2,265)  (2,265) — (1,614) —  (1,614)
Total Changes from MEABEHREREN
Financing Cash Flows 1) (2,475)  (52,348) (54,823) (2,475)  (47,816) — (50,291)
Exchange adjustments XA — (111) (111) — (111) (1,155)  (1,266)
Other Changes Hinig#
Interest Expenses FMEZH 2,475 2,518 4,993 2,475 1,614 — 4,089
Increase in Lease Liabilities  FEI4F A
arising from il EERE
New/Renewed Leases [E=plikzo]
during the Year HEEE — 9,246 9,246 — 8,375 — 8375
Total Other Changes Hih B g st 2,475 11,764 14,239 2,475 9,989 — 12,464
At 30 June 2023 and M2023F6A30H
1 July 2023 &202357A1H 100,000 69,030 169,030 100,000 53,826 21,096 174,922
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(b)

()
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Cash and Bank Deposits (continued)

HeERIBITER @)

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities (continued)
AMEEBREENEEEKR

The Group KRE2#E

The University X2

Loans from
Bank Loan Lease Bank Loan Lease  a Subsidiary
— Unsecured Liabilities Total — Unsecured Liabilities — Unsecured Total
(Note 30) (Note 31) (Note 30) (Note 31) (Note 30)
RITER RITEF M A RER
(In thousands of —\ER HEER Mt —EIEKA HEERE — EIEH Mt
Hong Kong dollars) (U FETat) (K300 (B1z£31) (Bfi#30)  (K1a£31) (KizE30)
Changes from MEEAR
Financing Cash Flows: RERENED :
Interest paid for B ERTT
Bank Loan B8 (2,963) —  (2,963) (2,963) — —  (2,963)
Capital Element of BENHEERSH
Lease Rentals Paid B — (53,253) (53,253) — (48,163) — (48,163)
Interest Element of EREERSH
Lease rentals paid MBRH — (1,708) (1,708) — (896) — (896)
Repayment of Loan BREN — — — — — (21,096) (21,096)
Total Changes from MEFEERSMEN
Financing Cash Flows by (2,963) (54,961) (57,924) (2,963)  (49,059) (21,096) (73,118)
Other Changes Hithg
Interest Expenses FMEZH 2,963 1,708 4,671 2,963 896 — 3,859
Increase in Lease Liabilities ~ EF A
arising from il EHEE
New/Renewed Leases (RN}
during the Year HEaE — 33,310 33,310 — 30,710 — 30,710
Total Other Changes S E @t 2,963 35018 37,981 2,963 31,606 — 34,569
At 30 June 2024 7A20245%6H30H 100,000 49,087 149,087 100,000 36,373 — 136,373
Total cash outflow for leases
HEMERESRN
The Group K22 The University X2
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (KA FETat) 2024 2023 2024 2023
Within operating cash flow FEBREMEN — 899 — 899
Within financing cash flow TERERESREN 54,961 52,348 49,059 47,816
54,961 53,247 49,059 48,715
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25 Deferred Income

B AE U A
The Group and the University
Note ABEBRAS

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (A FEITat) HiaE 2024 2023
Deferred Government Subventions R RN (a) 1,875,673 2,416,664
Research Matching Grant Scheme MR E B 2T 2 (b) 351,022 297,784
Other Deferred Income EAbRE WA (c) 299,853 603,205

2,526,548 3,317,653
Current Portion TRENES 1,089,274 2,056,596
Non-Current Portion IEMENEB D 1,437,274 1,261,057

2,526,548 3,317,653

(a) Deferred Government Subventions

iR ZE B AT 48 5K
The Group and the University K2R A2
Capital
Earmarked Other Grants & Hostel Grants from
Block Research Earmarked AA&I Block Development Government
Grants Grants Grants  Allocations Funds Agencies Total
Note
HEATR
g - #15 REHM
BE Hith RMEIR BERR BEH#E
(In thousands of Eog RPN HREX HERN BEEX S HI R wEt
Hong Kong dollars) (A F#Tat) Mt
Balance at 2022%7A1A
1 July 2022 e — 264,433 75,013 119,968 2,315,649 263,206 3,038,269
Government
Subventions Bl ek
Received/Receivable B 2,540,939 231,394 136,077 50,684 — 279,169 3,238,263
Recognised as FNA
Income in the Year BRABKA (2,271,699) (168,463) (101,860) — — (274,241) (2,816,263)
Transfers to Deferred EZEIEIE
Capital Funds BEAES (269,240) — (2,445) (61,183) (672,765) (37,972) (1,043,605)
Balance at 202346 A30H
30 June 2023 and }2023%
1 July 2023 7B18&8& — 327,364 106,785 109,469 1,642,884 230,162 2,416,664
Government
Subventions Bk TEMK
Received/Receivable BRI 2,580,150 298,146 68,031 36,696 — 368,454 3,351,477
Recognised as FR
Income in the Year  #RAWA  (2,353,447)  (224,162) (82,970) — — (371,147) (3,031,726)
Transfers to Deferred #EZ=IET
Capital Funds EXRED (226,703) — — (72,524) (539,635) (21,880)  (860,742)
Balance at 20246 A30H
30 June 2024 ®e — 401,348 91,846 73,641 1,103,249 205,589 1,875,673
Note:

Grants from Government Agencies included the Matching Grant for various exchange and mainland experience schemes launched by
Education Bureau (see notes 25(a)(i) to 25(a)(iv)).

st -
R R A B R B R BT IR LB SRR IR BINER LB S (LA 25)0) E25()iv) ©
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25 Deferred Income (continved)

EEEYWA =)

(a) Deferred Government Subventions (continued)

JEAE B AT IR (&)

86

Scheme for Subsidy on Exchange for Post-secondary Students
EEELBIITRERE

The Scheme for Subsidy on Exchange for Post-secondary Students (the Subsidy Scheme) was launched by the Education
Bureau of the HKSAR in 2014/15 to subsidise financially needy students studying on full-time locally-accredited
undergraduate (including top-up) and sub-degree programmes who wish to participate in outbound exchange
programmes. The Subsidy Scheme has been refined effective from July 2016 and September 2019 in terms of the
scope of the exchange activities covered and level of subsidy to be granted to individual students. The University and
School of Continuing and Professional Education (SCOPE) have complied with the requirements of the Subsidy Scheme
and the details of the income and expenditure of the Subsidy Scheme are separately disclosed as follows:

B FEERINIRE BT EIRBEA T INTRIREE BN 201415 FHTH — RS - MIEELATEN 2B HIZ
T2 (BRGTERE) RABLENREMEVRFENELIEHED - 2IBINRETE - B EIREY
BEREENSENEDSEIABERL - HRIR20165F7 AR2019FIAREN - RERFE#EBERDE
STzt BB ER YRR BINRA KR R ASRE I BT

The Group and the University

REBEEBR KB
The University
excluding SCOPE SCOPE
RE % 5
(T EEEEEESR) EEE5R
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (A FETat) 2024 2023 2024 2023
Balance at the Beginning of the Year & &8 4,622 4,542 — 103
Income 'ON
Subsidy Received B WE B & 7,319 6,896 — —
Subsidy Refunded 2REFEDE (4,486) (4,578) — (103)
Interest and Investment Income MERFEEWA 312 183 — —
3,145 2,501 — (103)
Expenditure B
Subsidy to Students ZEHER) 2,728 2,421 — —
Balance at the End of the Year FRER 5,039 4,622 — —
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25 Deferred Income (continved)

EIEWA =)

(a) Deferred Government Subventions (continued)
IEAE BN AT AR ()

o
Il.

Scheme for Subsidy on Exchange to “Belt and Road" Regions for Post-secondary Students ("SSEBR")
and Scheme for Means-tested Subsidy on Exchange to "Belt and Road"” Regions for Post-secondary
Students ("Means-tested SSEBR")

ErRA T RIMEXREDHAERELBE-F R I BEXRENAN (BRARREEEE)

To capitalise on the new opportunities created by the “One Belt, One Road" initiatives as well as to strengthen and
promote further educational exchanges between Hong Kong and the nearby countries along the Belt and Road,
the Education Bureau has introduced a new Scheme for Subsidy on Exchange to “Belt and Road” (B&R) Regions for
Post-secondary Students to encourage and support local students in need to go on exchanges in the B&R regions
starting from July 2016. Starting from September 2019, this subsidy scheme is provided under the Scheme for
Means-tested Subsidy on Exchange to “Belt and Road” Regions for Post-secondary Students. The Group and the

University have complied with the requirements of both schemes and the details of the income and expenditure of
both schemes are separately disclosed as follows:

BTIEEI—F B MRAMOMEE  ARNBNE-PHBFEE—F R aRJHOHEEIR - HERR
20167 AL —#ET8 : BLEEA[—F B IMWRXRENTE  BBNIHAMEFTESEE—HF 8] 4
BIEM - B2019F 9 A ZEPHESANELBA—HF B HWRIREDE (BARREEES) ¥
Mo RERERAEE BT BRMIER SIBRMER - WHRIER & MRA RS OFASEE L RENT

The Group and the University K 2&ER K2
Means-tested SSEBR

SLRE[ 5]
&R E B E &
(RABRREEES)
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (XF#&Tat) 2024 2023
Balance at the Beginning of the Year & #l#&# 960 602
Income WA
Subsidy Received e ek 1,286 1,128
Subsidy Refunded EREFEEE (940) (606)
Interest and Investment Income FERIEEWA 64 33
410 555
Expenditure BX
Subsidy to Students BEEE) 308 197
Balance at the End of the Year FRIES 1,062 960
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25 Deferred Income (continved)

EEEYWA =)

(a) Deferred Government Subventions (continued)

JEAE B AT IR (&)

88

Scheme for Non-means-tested Subsidy on Exchange to “Belt and Road" Regions for Post-secondary
Students

ErE4[—F—RIBMEXRENFAE (RABRREEESD)

To capitalise on the new opportunities created by the “One Belt, One Road” initiatives as well as to strengthen and
promote further educational exchanges between Hong Kong and the nearby countries along the Belt and Road, the
Education Bureau has introduced a new Scheme for Non-Means-tested Subsidy on Exchange to “Belt and Road” (B&R)
Regions for Post-secondary Students to encourage and support local students in need to go on exchanges in the B&R
regions starting from July 2019. The Group and the University have complied with the requirements of the Subsidy
Scheme and the details of the income and expenditure of the Subsidy Scheme are separately disclosed as follows:

BTREI &K AEANIEE  URNBIME - THDEBR] —HF R aRSHOBERIR - HERR
20197 AL Z— %t 8l - ELBA - HF BRI HRIREDHH (RASREERDE) BN XHAMET
BEAFI—F—RIARMERR - AKEEBRRSCET LRSI BN ER - Wik%T 8 R A R HF
MERBIREWT

The Group and the University

RERERAZ

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (A FETaEt) 2024 2023
Balance at the Beginning of the Year & #l#& & 796 479
Income WA
Subsidy Received [ 1,424 1,176
Subsidy Refunded BEREmHE (779) (492)
Interest and Investment Income FERIEEWA 58 29

703 713
Expenditure Fx
Subsidy to Students B4EE) 531 396
Balance at the End of the Year FRERR 968 796
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25 Deferred Income (continved)

EIEWA =)

(a) Deferred Government Subventions (continued)

JEAE B AF IR (&)
iv.

Non-means-tested Mainland Experience Scheme for Post-secondary Students

ErE4LRMERE (RABREEESE)

To encourage more post-secondary students, both local and non-local, in Hong Kong to pursue exchange activities
comprising substantive teaching and learning elements to be held in the Mainland, the Education Bureau introduced
the Non-means-tested Mainland Experience Scheme for Post-secondary Students starting from July 2019. The Group
and the University has complied with the requirements of the Subsidy Scheme and the details of the income and

expenditure of the Subsidy Scheme are separately disclosed as follows:

REBES AU AN E FREEBASRREREHRETRMAMOIMEE - BE RN 2019F7 AL
g B84 NmRRAE (RASREERD) - ABBEBNMAZEET LME SRR ER - WHKZEAEHEA

KA ABEEL KRBT

The Group and the University

RERERAR

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (A FETat) 2024 2023
Balance at the Beginning of the Year & #l#&# 354 346
Income 'ON
Subsidy Received [=RLe )k 477 468
Subsidy Refunded BEREHY (356) (349)
Interest and Investment Income FERIZEEWA 21 14

142 133
Expenditure B
Subsidy to Students BEEE) 312 125
Balance at the End of the Year FRER 184 354
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(b)

(©

90

Deferred Income (continued)

EEEYWA =)

Research Matching Grant Scheme
A E L

The Research Matching Grant Scheme aims to allow the higher education sector to diversify research funding sources
and incentivise more contributions from and collaboration with the private sector. The Research Matching Grant Scheme
commenced from August 2019 and will continue accepting applications until the $3-billion provision is fully exhausted. The
scheme is designated for all research-related purposes with no restriction on any academic discipline. The Group and the
University have complied with the requirements of the Scheme and the details of the Research Matching Grants, Matched
Donations/ Research Grants/ Research Contracts of the Scheme and their related expenditure are separately disclosed as
follows:

MERLHPSTEEERSFTHERANARLERREB S L - LERHESHA W BIRH BB - A
WfE - IR E MBI EE N 2019F 8 AT R X AR EE 30T H MBI S RAE - LTI S ANEHERE R
BR - TREE - REBBRAZEET L SIRROER - UHRMAREEHDS  SRRYER MHREnE/
MEE K R EAREMA S FABEREL BN T

The Group and the University

REBEERASE
2024 2023
Matched Matched
Donations/ Donations/
Research Research
Research Grants/ Research Grants/
Matching Research Matching Research
Grants Contracts Grants Contracts
BYER [RESEEE- 0
MREY WE#RBE WREY  WHEEBES
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AF&ETAt) e MEE4 wWEhE HEEL
Balance at the Beginning of the Year F#l#&k 135,983 161,801 123,804 144,823
Income ['ON
Donations/Research Grants/ [RESEEE 1
Research Contracts Received WREL 44,401 74,920 27,937 67,244
Investment Returns FTERA — — — (1,955)
Other Income Haug A — 1 — 811
44,401 74,921 27,937 66,100
Expenditure B
Research Project(s) ftIE B 22,532 44,975 15,708 42,511
Research Equipment ITR — (1,319) 50 120
Setting up of Research Facilities REMIRE — (1,520) — 1,953
Research Activities for Students REERTWATED — 1,416 — 3,529
Others i — — — 1,009
22,532 43,552 15,758 49,122
Balance at the End of the Year FREER 157,852 193,170 135,983 161,801

Other Deferred Income

HAthIEAEULA

Other deferred income comprises investment returns from Hostel Development Fund and project funding from other

sources.

HEEWABREEESERES ZRERARKBEMBIFEZABES -
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26 Accounts Payable and Accruals

BAiRRRETER

Note The Group X 2§ The University X2

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (X FETat) Hat 2024 2023 2024 2023
Creditors and Accruals IR N AT E A 523,971 459,165 504,120 440,116
Retention Monies Payable FERHRE R 200,627 184,932 200,627 184,932
Amounts due to UGC FENHE g 2 IR 515,927 446,175 515,927 446,175
Amount due to a Subsidiary BB AR 2 5KIE — — 4,427 2,941
Derivative Financial Instruments PTHESMIAZ

Payables FETIR K 17 33,569 56,242 33,569 56,242
Amounts due to Brokers JERT 4 40 R RRIR 29,636 197,032 29,636 197,032

1,303,730 1,343,546 1,288,306 1,327,438

S
&
ok
3
P

Current Portion 1,229,854 1,220,692 1,214,430 1,204,584
73,876 122,854 73,876 122,854

1,303,730 1,343,546 1,288,306 1,327,438

N
A
=N
it
okk
o]
N5

Non-current Portion

Except for Retention Monies Payable of $73,876,000 (2023: $122,854,000), under non-current liabilities, other accounts
payable and accruals are expected to be settled within one year or are repayable on demand.

BRRIERBEGEE THREMNRES7,38786TIT(20234F : 1182,28584T7T) Hb - HMEN IR N E BRI EME
—FRNBHERER T o

27 Contract Liabilities

aHNaE
The Group XZ2%E The University X2
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (A FXETat) 2024 2023 2024 2023
Deposits Withheld ngne 8,590 8,429 8,590 8,429
Receipts in Advance TEW R IE 98,532 100,991 93,849 97,370
Deferred Tuition Fees RIESE 614,842 396,189 614,842 396,189
721,964 505,609 717,281 501,988

The majority of contract liabilities are expected to be settled or recognised as income within one year or are repayable on
demand.

REDENBEORERAR —FAMBRERSWAIEERER
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92

Contract Liabilities (continved)

=
EHEaE @
Movement in contract liabilities
EHEaENEE
The Group XRZ%E§E The University X2

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AFBTA) 2024 2023 2024 2023
Balance at the Beginning of the Year F#l#&# 505,609 442,451 501,988 439,931
Decrease in contract liabilities as BIEFYIH

a result of recognising revenue BHEE

during the year that was included MRERNERR

in the contract liabilities WARTESE

at the beginning of the Year BREBENRD (490,371) (433,129) (488,996)  (432,319)
Increase in contract liabilities as REFEARUELE

a result of receiving tuition and BEREMEWER

other fees in advance FrEE A&

during the Year A#aEEm 706,726 496,287 704,289 494,376
Balance at the End of the Year FRER 721,964 505,609 717,281 501,988

Provision for Employee Benefits

EEEFERE

The Group K28

The University X2

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AF#&TA) 2024 2023 2024 2023
Salaries i 10,598 14,892 7,993 13,216
Provision for Untaken Leave Balances RHEVER R At eh 4 464,066 460,450 458,108 454,707
Other Employee Benefits EfthiE BfEF 272,565 250,205 271,571 248,537
747,229 725,547 737,672 716,460

Payable: JERTFRIA
Within 1 year P ER A 682,103 663,805 672,546 654,718
After 1 year P FiEX 65,126 61,742 65,126 61,742
747,229 725,547 737,672 716,460
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29 Employee Retirement Benefits
EERKEF

The Group operates two approved retirement schemes for its employees: City University of Hong Kong Superannuation
Scheme B (1998) (the Superannuation Scheme) under the Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance (ORSO) and the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the MPF Scheme) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance.

The Superannuation Scheme established under a Trust Deed on 29 May 1998 between the University and the Trustees, is
a defined contribution scheme in nature. However, the Scheme has been registered under the ORSO as a defined benefit
scheme due to the provision for minimum death and disability benefits covered by an insurance policy. The University’s
and all scheme members’ contributions are unified to calculate at 15% and 5%, respectively, of the employees’ salaries.

The University and its subsidiaries operate the MPF Scheme for employees not covered by the Superannuation Scheme. The
MPF Scheme is a defined contribution scheme administered by independent trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, the employer
and its employees are each required to make contributions to the MPF Scheme at 5% of the employees’ salaries, subject
to a cap of monthly salary of $30,000. With effect from 1 July 2017, eligible staff members are allowed to elect to replace
their existing contractual entitlement to a gratuity payment with an entitlement to payment of an equivalent amount by
the University to the University’s MPF Scheme as Employer’s Voluntary Contribution. Contributions to the MPF Scheme vest
immediately.

XABRBAREREMERTHRAE  RECGRERAEBER) EMOTSATABRABLZHE (1998) (RS
STBI) RAEEIRES GRS AR H BIED) R HRFILATE 23 8 GRS B) -

NESHERAKERZEARBEERAMN1998FS5 529 HEKMN —BAEHAEE R - Fet2IARBFER AT &
BEREERTE MR - AT EICRIE B ERRTENED) M A —BREEFIERMNRTE - KERETEIMKENEZD 5
H—REEEHF2215%K5% o

RENEMBABATEAERABRENRERL TRESE - @B —EAREHKEKFE  BBINX
FEABRE - RIBBREDFE - EXNEEARZREERHEASNS% AFEEHHENR  SANEBEARLRA/3IET -
H2017F7A1HE  AEBHBEAEEHASERESOIAXN TREZESMEFENHR SR - UAEMR
BeFE MEEEREHRNRE - ARES B H KA AR ERER/A

The contributions of the Group and the University to the retirement schemes during the year are as follows:

RERBIASRFARERARTIEISBEMROT

The Group X2 XE8 The University X2
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AFETat) 2024 2023 2024 2023
Contributions to Defined AEHRFERIKET S
Contribution Retirement Schemes HR 142,843 151,008 139,341 147,486

As at 30 June 2024, the outstanding contributions to defined contribution retirement schemes for the Group and the
University were $10,403,000 (2023: $9,550,000) and $9,840,000 (2023: $9,052,000) respectively.

R2024F 6 A30H  REEBRASRINHATEHTENRTENERS R AE1,04083F L (20234F : 9558 7T) &
984 & 7T (20234 : 9058 2F L) °
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30 Loans and Borrowings

ERRER

Note The Group XR2%Eg The University X2
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (X FETat) Bt 2024 2023 2024 2023
Bank Loan — Unsecured RITER — EIEI (@) 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000
Loans from a Subsidiary — Unsecured HIBARIER — EEKH (b) — — — 21,096
100,000 100,000 100,000 121,096
Repayable: EENIA
Within 1 year or 1 FERERK
on demand ARER(ER 100,000 100,000 100,000 121,096
Notes:

(a) The unsecured bank loans of $100,000,000 (2023: $100,000,000) raised for on-lending to qualified staff members of the University
bears interest at 2.9% below prime rate since 26 February 2020. Subject to renewal, the loan is repayable within 12 months.

(b) The University has borrowed unsecured and interest-free loans from a subsidiary as its working capital. The loans are repayable on

demand. The University has fully repaid the loans during the year (2023: nil).

Bt
(a) BERTABBRNASE B MRAMEEBETERET (20234  1187T) * F12020492 A 26 BEEF| RIZREEF KH2.9% ° 7
?E%ﬁ%ﬂi CERER12EAREE -

b) RER—BEARBARBERE RS ERBIEEREEELS - ZFEFABREER - ARENFAREBEEZZEN(2023F : T) -

31 Lease Liabilities
HEASE

The Group and the University’s lease liabilities were repayable as follows:

ABBELARSNHERBENATFIER

The Group KE %88 The University X2
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AFETat) 2024 2023 2024 2023
Within 1 year —FR 23,704 49,343 18,919 45,099
After 1 year but within 2 years —FRIEMFR 16,252 10,932 11,250 7,465
After 2 years but within 5 years MERBRTR 9,131 8,394 6,204 1,262
After 5 years hFig — 361 — —
25,383 19,687 17,454 8,727
49,087 69,030 36,373 53,826
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32 Deferred Capital Funds

33

BELEEXRES

The Group and The University X 2K k&2

Furniture,

Machinery

Construction Leasehold and
Buildings in Progress Improvements Equipment Total

HE B -
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (A FEITat) RE ERIRE MELE HEBREM st
Balance at 1 July 2022 2022F 7818 &8% 1,694,949 560,402 249,627 355,648 2,860,626
Transfers from Deferred Income B EIRERA — 827,089 58,551 238,978 1,124,618
Transfers (2324 — (149,965) 149,965 — —

Release to the Statement of =20

Comprehensive Income EERER (86,178) — (148,568)  (160,156)  (394,902)
Balance at 30 June 2023 202356 A30HK

and 1 July 2023 2023F7 A1 B8 1,608,771 1,237,526 309,575 434,470 3,590,342
Transfers (to)/from wE (),

Deferred Income BIEERA (14,009) 1,116,810 40,407 182,271 1,325,479
Transfers o — (112,700) 112,700 — —
Release to the Statement of s

Comprehensive Income 2ERER (76,607) — (142,276) (200,275) (419,158)
Balance at 30 June 2024 202456 A30 B4 1,518,155 2,241,636 320,406 416,466 4,496,663

Related Party Transactions

Rl E X5

All transactions relating to the purchase of goods and services and capital projects involving organisations in which a
member of the University Council, key management personnel and directors of subsidiaries may have an interest are
conducted during the normal course of business and in accordance with the University’s financial regulations and normal
procurement procedures.

All donations and gifts from members of the University Council, key management personnel, directors of subsidiaries and
companies controlled or significantly influenced by them, are conducted in accordance with the normal processes and
procedures for acceptance of donations as prescribed by the University.

PIEERNBEEERMBHE R TIRERNRS - FRARBEASRESKE
1ERE - ERASBNPBRURERRERRF £ LEESERSRETET -

nn}*

SHEABRMBARESE RN

FIERASEREENE TEERABRNBARESRIERENZESAFENNAINBHRRER  HUKXERE
FEWNEENER ERRE -
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33 Related Party Transactions (continued

Rt AR5 )

Key Management Personnel Remuneration

FEEEASHS

The University has paid remuneration to the key management personnel. Their gross remuneration is summarised as follows:
RECREEERBABX NS - HMlSEBEHtnT -

The University X2

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (KXFBat) 2024 2023
Short-term Employee Benefits R EB T 108,097 80,499
Post-employment Benefits RRET 13,053 11,167

121,150 91,666

The above remuneration is included in “Staff Costs and Benefits” (see note 8).

Details of the Group’s and the University’s approved retirement schemes are set out in note 29.
LS B BEE [ RBEHWRERN K (ZHES) -
RERERKBRAIMRNRGEFEEIIENHF T 29 -

34 Commitments

iR

Capital commitments outstanding at 30 June 2024 not provided for in the financial statements were as follows:

MR2024% 6 A30R8 + REFERE LIREBMERFEMNOT -

The Group X228 The University X&
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AFETat) 2024 2023 2024 2023
Contracted for BEEAL 371,829 1,534,950 371,593 1,534,761
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35 Capital Management
BEXEH

The University is a higher education institution funded by the government through the UGC. It was established under
the laws of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region, of which the objectives are to provide for studies, training and
research and development in technology, engineering, science, commerce, arts and other subjects of learning. The University
is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements and its activities are mainly funded by government grants and
tuition fees. The use of UGC funds is governed by the UGC Notes on Procedures and other grant conditions. The University’s
activities are also funded by donations and income generated from self-financing activities and other income.

The primary objectives of the University’s subsidiaries when managing capital are to safeguard the entities’ ability to continue
as a going concern. They are not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements. The subsidiaries’ capital structure
and management policies are regularly reviewed and managed with due regard to the capital management practices of
the University.

The Restricted Fund and Other Funds of the Group and the University represent the unspent balance of government
subventions, tuition fees, donations and funds earmarked for specific purposes. These funds are managed according to
the relevant grant and funding conditions, where applicable, and the University’s investment and financial management
guidelines and procedures in meeting the Group’s and the University’s objectives.

REZ-FHBFEEREGEYNREERN - ABRBEFBRINTREEAEMAY - ERERREMHMT - T8 - 2
B B XHEEMBROTHE - JIREMEMER - KEAEZZNFEMNEARL  EXHEHNEELTENR
BTSN BB - MERBESRAZIHESRFRENEMBFIEHARR - ABNEDLETHBEHREE
BERHNRAREAMBRAPTIE

REMBARNEAEENENBNRRERRAENFEERF - HLEZFINBMOEARER - MFINERE
BREEBRRARASHNENEIRRIEMTERIELRT RERE

REBBIASNERES REMBESABAER - 28 BRREMERERNFANKERGER - ELESRREA
FARRB G (E ) RARBHREMVBEETRINEFEER WA REBREBLARENER -
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36

(a)

98

Financial Risk Management

EREMEE

Financial instruments of the Group and the University include bank deposits, debt securities, equities securities, investments
held by fund managers, other investments, loans receivable, accounts receivables, accounts payables and loans and
borrowings which have exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate, foreign currency and equity price risks arising in the
normal course of the Group’s and the University’s operations. These risks are limited by the Group’s and the University’s
financial management policies and practices described below.

REERIABHERMIABERTEN  BKES  BREERF  FHRESKLENRE HMKRE  BREXR - BY
IR BIERMERREE - ERSRTANAAIABBRERASEARLSELRETELNEE R - F=X .
SNE R RERALR -  KBEBRAEA NNHHEEEBRRMEFFELEFRRE

Credit Risk
EERK

Credit risk refers to how a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in a financial loss to the Group
and the University.

The Group's and the University’s credit risk are primarily attributable to investments, loans receivable and accounts receivable.

The Group's and the University’s major investments include bank deposits, debt securities, equities managed internally
and funds placed with external professional portfolio managers. Risk control is carried out under the investment guidelines
approved by the Finance Committee under the Council. Risk control is achieved through asset diversification, rules governing
the selection and credit limit of investment counterparties with reference to their credit ratings and financial strength and
investment guidelines covering the investment limitations, asset allocation and performance measurement imposed for each
portfolio manager. On-going monitoring and review of investment strategies and performance are carried out to ensure
that the investment objectives and performance targets are met.

Investments are normally only in liquid securities quoted on a recognised stock exchange, except where entered into for
long-term strategic purposes. Transactions involving derivative financial instruments are with counterparties of sound credit
standing. Given their high credit standing, management does not expect any investment counterparty to fail to meet its
obligations.

In respect of loans receivable and accounts receivable, regular reviews and follow-up actions are carried out on over-due
amounts to minimise exposure to credit risk. The Group and the University have no concentration of credit risk in view of
its large number of debtors.

Apart from the loan to a subsidiary, given the Group and the University have not experienced any significant credit losses
in the past, the allowance for expected credit losses is therefore insignificant.

FEERBEXSHFHAREAH LNEEMERASERRABRIMBHIERL -
REZBIASEHUNEERRIEREKRE  BREFRLEKIRS -

RERBPABIZNRECEARATENRITIENR  BHKES  BEIBFMERBERINEXESKENES - AR
EEDREREGE TN BZEGMALENRETHANT - AREEERERE  EEZ UL  2ERRETNEER
MBI BREN KA ERERRFEENEERY  BRREEREENKNRETHUAREERNESEENRRELFT
% BRERBMARRSETIHBEELEN - WRREERPNKREBNEREBR -
REEBMAB—RAGREERABRERZFMBEERMIZHES (RERBIRERIN) - MRXZFRITESHTA -
RHHTABRENERFR - ERXZYTNERFRRY - EEBATNENIZY T @BEBITRS °
ERWERLEWIRSASE - ASBBFTHETESYRELBIMBNNIRR  SEAZNEERRRERE - HRE
BABBRZ  REBRIASWLRARTHNEERR -

SREARETI  ARNABEREABBEYBIAENEEEROKE  AABREEERNBELTERX -
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36

(b)

Financial Risk Management (continved)
LRIEMERE »

Liquidity Risk
RENE 2

To ensure sufficient liquidity to meet payment obligations, the Group and the University closely monitor its current and
expected cash demands arising from all liabilities and borrowings. The Group and the University maintain sufficient cash
and bank deposits to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and long term.

Based on the cash flow analysis, the Group and the University manage its liquidity risk by forecasting the amount of cash
requirements and monitoring the working capital to ensure that all liabilities due and known funding requirements can be
met.

RERBERANRBDESULMNRIE  REERBIASETMERAERLEGFENEAEREEMEENRET R -
REBENAPRHERANE S LIRTERABRNERRRBNRHESFEK

RERSRENIN  ABERBIAZEERER ST KNERLEELEESHKFRERERBES AR - IR
BEMNBERDHNE S FREESA -

The following table presents the earliest settlement dates of the Group’s and the University’s financial liabilities at the end
of the reporting period:

TRIEABBERASNEERRZ ERBERFAAE

The Group K &EE
2024

More than More than
Within 1 Year but 2 Years but

1Yearor Less than Less than 5 Years Carrying
on Demand 2 Years 5 Years and More Total Amount
1FRE 10 E 288

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (X F&Tat) BHEREE (EOR2FE BAIRSE 5ERMNE et IRESE
Accounts Payable and Accruals  FEfIRF L ERHER 1,222,983 73,876 — — 1,296,859 1,296,859
Provision for Employee Benefits  {& 2 1@ FI# & 682,103 65,126 — — 747,229 747,229
Lease Liabilities HEARE 25,051 16,857 9,294 — 51,202 49,087
Loans and Borrowings BERREE 100,000 — — — 100,000 100,000
2,030,137 155,859 9,294 — 2,195,290 2,193,175

2023

More than More than
Within 1 Year but 2 Years but

1 Year or Less than Less than 5 Years Carrying
on Demand 2 Years 5 Years and More Total Amount

1AL 1 E 2FLAE
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (A F&Tat) AREREER  BOR2F BIRSFE SFRHME “Et RS
Accounts Payable and Accruals  FEfSIR AR FERTERA 1,210,430 122,854 — — 1,333,284 1,333,284
Provision for Employee Benefits & B @5 % & 663,805 61,742 — — 725,547 725,547
Lease Liabilities HEAaE 50,736 11,513 8,740 364 71,353 69,030
Loans and Borrowings BRREE 100,000 — — — 100,000 100,000
2,024,971 196,109 8,740 364 2,230,184 2,227,861
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36 Financial Risk Management (continved)

(b)

1700 City University of Hong Kong & m A2

ERAKREIRE @

Liquidity Risk (continued)
RBESEM )

The Group X2
2024

Contractual Undiscounted Cash (Outflow)/Inflow

BRENZRFTRRS (Rd) RA

Within More than More than
1 Year or 1 Year but Less 2 Years but Less 5 Years
on Demand than 2 Years than 5 Years and More Total
1FRA%K 1F0E 2F B E
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LA T&Tst) BREREE BLR2F BLR5E  SERNE st
Derivatives Settled Gross: PTHET A RU#EEE -
Derivative Financial Instruments 74 &/ T E
— Outflow — i (4,098,866) — — — (4,098,866)
— Inflow — mA 4,118,367 — — — 4,118,367
2023
Contractual Undiscounted Cash (Outflow)/Inflow
RAENZANMBERS (RE) /RA
Within More than More than
1 Year or 1 Year but Less 2 Years but Less 5 Years
on Demand than 2 Years than 5 Years and More Total
1E R 15 E 2F LA E
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (A F&Tat) AP ER BAR2F BAOREE SFERNE wEt
Derivatives Settled Gross: PTHET AU HEEE -
Derivative Financial Instruments  $T4 4@ T A
— Outflow — (2,985,869) — — — (2,985,869)
— Inflow — A 3,007,199 — — — 3,007,199
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36 Financial Risk Management (continved)

(b)

EREAKREIRE @

Liquidity Risk (continued)
RBESEM ()

The University X2

2024

More than More than

Within 1 Year but 2 Years but
1 Year or Less than Less than 5 Years Carrying
on Demand 2 Years 5Years and More Total Amount
1FRZ 10 E 28 E
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LA T&Tat) ARERHEE E2R2F EHIRS5F  SFERME wEt EESHE
Accounts Payable and Accruals ~ FEfIRF L ERHERA 1,207,559 73,876 — — 1,281,435 1,281,435
Provision for Employee Benefits  {& B & FI & & 672,546 65,126 — — 737,672 737,672
Lease Liabilities HEAaE 19,694 11,590 6,282 — 37,566 36,373
Loans and Borrowings BERREE 100,000 — — — 100,000 100,000
1,999,799 150,592 6,282 — 2,156,673 2,155,480
2023
More than More than
Within 1 Year but 2 Years but
1 Year or Less than Less than 5 Years Carrying
on Demand 2 Years 5 Years and More Total Amount
1 REL 164 E 2F A E
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LA F&Tat) ABEREER BOR2F BORSFE SFERNME wEt RE&EE
Accounts Payable and Accruals  FETIRAR R FERT BB 1,194,322 122,854 — — 1,317,176 1,317,176
Provision for Employee Benefits & B @I #{& 654,718 61,742 — — 716,460 716,460
Lease Liabilities HEaE 45,787 7,552 1,268 — 54,607 53,826
Loans and Borrowings ERkEE 121,096 — — — 121,096 121,096
2,015,923 192,148 1,268 — 2,209,339 2,208,558
The University X2
2024
Contractual Undiscounted Cash (Outflow)/Inflow
RENZRTRRS (Rd) HA
Within More than More than
1 Year or 1 Year but Less 2 Years but Less 5 Years
on Demand than 2 Years than 5 Years and More Total
1FRH 1 E 28k
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LA TETat) AR {EER BLR2F BLRSE  S5ERLE st
Derivatives Settled Gross: PTHET ARz RWEEE -
Derivative Financial Instruments {74 & @ T A
— Outflow — it (4,098,866) — — — (4,098,866)
— Inflow — A 4,118,367 — — 4,118,367
2023
Contractual Undiscounted Cash (Outflow)/Inflow
BENZATRES (RE) /RA
Within More than More than
1 Year or 1 Year but Less 2 Years but Less 5 Years
on Demand than 2 Years than 5 Years and More Total
1E R 15 E 2F LA E
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LA T&Tst) JERERFEIE BAR2F BALRSE  SERME 45
Derivatives Settled Gross: PTHET AR EEE -
Derivative Financial Instruments {74 & @ T A
— Outflow — (2,985,869) — — — (2,985,869)
— Inflow — A 3,007,199 — — — 3,007,199
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36 Financial Risk Management (continved)

()

ERAKREIRE @

Interest Rate Risk
F 2= 3 B

The Group and the University are exposed to interest rate risk since the Group and the University have significant
interest-bearing financial assets. The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from debt securities, deposits and loans
receivable. Floating rate deposits and loans receivable expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. Interest income will
decrease as a result of a decrease in interest rates. Fixed rate debt securities expose the Group to fair value interest rate
risk. The value of fixed rate debt securities will drop when market interest rates increase. The Group and the University
manage its exposure to interest rate risk by diversifying its funds into a variety of fixed and floating rate instruments with
various tenures.

The Group's and the University’'s interest-bearing financial liabilities at the end of the reporting period are not significant.
The Group and the University do not expect short-term fluctuations in market interest rates that will have a significant
impact on the Group's and the University's operations.

REBENAZERAURDAESNEREE  AARNXER - ABEROMNXARTIERBEBES - FRNE
WER - ZEEFRLEREREABPERATRSANERAR - FEWAKRENEKTEMRD o BEMREHEFEKX
BERBAIDABENEER - EMSMNE EAE - BENXEHIESNEES TR KPERRABEBKEES T
LR EETNRABRERZENRAFHNETEFBFMETAL - BEREAINMERER -

AR A B D A S S B (B o KB T A S 8 R K R B T SRR Tk
BBELERREANTE -

The following table details the interest rate profile of the Group’s and the University’s investments in interest-bearing
deposits, loans receivable and financial liabilities at the end of the reporting period:

TRIMABBBIABNEERR 2 EREFH  BRERLREREBENN R -

The Group K2 &

2024 2023
Effective Carrying Effective Carrying
Interest Rate Amount Interest Rate Amount
kS IRE S BRF= RE&E
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (A FETat) % %
Deposits and Loans Receivable FRRERER
Fixed Rate Deposits FEBFER 5.7% 441,788 4.9% 314,180
Floating Rate Deposits FEER 0.9% 125,144 1.1% 108,567
Floating Rate Loans Receivable FRERER 3.0% 117,380 2.5% 124,690
Total st 684,312 547,437
Fixed Rate Deposits as TERIF AL
a Percentage of Total ELEmAE
Interest-bearing Financial Assets BER L 65% 57%
Fixed Rate Borrowings EEREE
Lease Liabilities HEEE 3.6% 49,087 2.9% 69,030
Floating Rate Borrowings FEEE
Bank Loan RITER 3.0% 100,000 2.5% 100,000
Total et 149,087 169,030
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36 Financial Risk Management (continved)
LRIEMERE »

(c) Interest Rate Risk (continued)

MEER (&)
The University X2
2024 2023
Effective Carrying Effective Carrying
Interest Rate Amount Interest Rate Amount
BRAIE RE SR BERA= IR &5
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (KXFBat) % %
Deposits and Loans Receivable ERRERER
Fixed Rate Deposits EBEFR 5.8% 430,391 4.9% 300,000
Floating Rate Deposits FEER 1.0% 101,475 1.2% 94,599
Floating Rate Loans Receivable FRERER 3.0% 117,380 2.5% 124,690
Floating Rate Loans to Subsidiaries FEEWHE AR ER 2.4% 18,000 1.9% 18,000
Total 5T 667,246 537,289
Fixed Rate Deposits as TEBIF AL
a Percentage of Total EOEmAE
Interest-bearing Financial Assets FEEEE 65% 56%
Fixed Rate Borrowing EEEE
Lease Liabilities HEEE 2.8% 36,373 2.1% 53,826
Floating Rate Borrowing BFEEE
Bank Loan RITEK 3.0% 100,000 2.5% 100,000
Total #st 136,373 153,826
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36 Financial Risk Management (continved)

()

ERAKREIRE @

Interest Rate Risk (continued)

FIEEM (&)

Sensitivity Analysis
BBMES T

As at 30 June 2024, it is estimated that a general increase/decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, would have increased/decreased the Group’s and the University’s surplus by approximately
$1,425,000 and $1,369,000 respectively (2023: decreased/increased the Group’s and University's deficit by approximately
$1,333,000 and $1,373,000 respectively).

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined assuming that the change in interest rates occurred at the end of the
reporting period and had been applied to the exposure to interest rate risk for investments for floating rate financial assets
in existence at that date. The Group and the University may be exposed to interest rate risk indirectly via its holding in the
investment portfolios which hold debt instruments. Increase/decrease in investment income from these investment portfolios
arising from interest rate change, however, are not considered in the sensitivity analysis above due to insufficient information
provided by fund managers. The 100 basis points increase/decrease represents management’s assessment of a reasonably
possible change in interest rates over the period until the end of the next annual reporting period. The analysis is on the
same basis for 2023.

MR2024%F6 A30H » BRAMBEMAZGHEAXRETE » MAIREN, 1002 F  KEZELKEBRFERNNEGD
B, A E142EB 5T TR 13689 T IT (20234 : ABREN AEBHNEIED IR 1N 1338 3T Tk 137
B3TmT) -

FREBEAROTERRATENEDRGERREA - LEAAAPRERARNLANT LR EFRAT A
KA ABRBEABEBEHANREEAPHHANEEBELERERTEFRNER « M LSRR
HRHEH  REANERDHERSREMAAEEZ REWSEEN B BIEHE R IR SRS E S -
S0,/ R 10085 T RIEEREHES FESZSER I HIAEN AR TLBBNTE 1A IS 2023 FHE—E
1T -
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36

(d)

Financial Risk Management (continved)

EREAKREIRE @

Foreign Currency Risk

ShER B

The Group and the University primarily conduct their operation in Hong Kong with transactions substantially denominated in
Hong Kong Dollars (HKD). The Group and the University are exposed to currency risk primarily from deposits and investment

portfolios denominated in other currencies. As HKD is currently pegged to the United States dollars (USD), the Group and
the University consider the risk of exchange rates fluctuations between the HKD and USD to be insignificant.

In respect of investment portfolios denominated in other currencies, the Group and the University control their exposure to
foreign currency risk by entering into foreign exchange forward contracts to minimise the exposure to foreign currencies.

REBELABIBHERBENE MABNKZIERTIEAETRAEESE - AEREBMASARHIMNER R T BK
BAEMINE SEEERN TR RIREHEE - BEETA AR THE - ABBBIAER /B THRITERZ(CZME
NG

BRAEMINETHEZIRE - AEBRBMABEBREINEERAOBIAZHNINERBRERE -

As at 30 June 2024, the percentage of financial assets denominated in currencies other than HKD or USD to total financial
assets of the Group and the University is 9% (2023: 11%). Details are as follows:

202456 4300 REERNABUBTHETUIHENSREEESREELTEI% (2023F : 11%) ° #FIER
FIET

The Group and the University

REBEER KSR

2024 2023
Korean Won EEE 2% 3%
New Taiwan Dollars ek 2% 3%
Renminbi AR 2% 2%
British Pound Sterling R 2% 1%
Others Efth 1% 2%
Sensitivity Analysis
BRESHT

Assuming that the relevant foreign exchange rate to which the Group and the University have significant exposure at the
end of the reporting period had strengthened/weakened by not more than 5% (2023: 5%) at 30 June 2024, with all other
variables held constant, the impact of the Group’s and University’s surplus (2023: deficit) is not expected to be material.

The sensitivity analysis above assumes that the change in the foreign exchange rate had been applied to re-measure those
financial instruments held by the Group and the University which expose the Group and the University to foreign currency
risk at the end of the reporting period. The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2023.

R2024%6 A30H @ BRAMAEMAIEHEARRIETE - HEABBERRABINERBA B INEEE LT THLZ
5% (20234 : 5%) - FAMHRSEERASFANALR (2023F : BHR)ATEEERTE -

PSR ES AT EBRRINEEENE SR GEERREE  TAREFITEASBEEBLAENZENSEERT AR
AXHEZRE o kDM TIA2023 FH R —EAEHETT -

Financial Report Bi#§#e 202324 105



Notes to the Financial Statements 8% 3% K &

36 Financial Risk Management (continved)

(e)

ERAKREIRE @

Price Risk
E1& B s

The Group and the University are exposed to price risk as the value of its equity and debt securities and investment funds
will increase/decrease if prices change. In respect of investment portfolios for investing in equity and debt securities and
investment funds, the Group and the University control their exposure to price risk through diversifying the portfolios in
terms of asset classes and geographical areas in accordance with the limits as stipulated in the investment guidelines.

KEBRNDREBEFMEEESNBESREEREEM LA THK  AURBEERASAZZERAR - BRIAKR
BERMHREBEFMREESNREMLS  REBBMABRBIRE D HATRENEEAR Kb o HmEH A 0E
R o

The Group's and the University’s listed and unlisted equity and debt securities and investment funds are held in the following
regions:

KEBERABH LT R LTRG RABESHRAES R TLE -

The Group X2%g The University X2

2024 2023 2024 2023
Hong Kong BB 1% 12% 9% 10%
Mainland China B R RE 4% 4% 4% 4%
Rest of Asia-Pacific HAh A 18% 20% 19% 20%
North America 1EEM 42% 40% 42% 41%
Europe and others BIOM B2 H A b [ 25% 24% 26% 25%
Sensitivity Analysis
BBRES T

At the end of the reporting period, if the prices of the respective equity and debt securities had been 5% higher/lower,
with all other variables held constant, the Group’s and the University’s surplus for the year would have increased/decreased
by $151,168,000 and $149,970,000 respectively (2023: the Group’s and the University’s deficit would have decreased/
increased by $183,168,000 and $182,513,000) as a result of the changes in fair value of equity and debt securities. The
analysis is performed on the same basis for 2023.

REEHR  BRRFTBEMAESHRAEZREIE  WEBRD REEELENERLFATES5% @ KEHE KEFER
MEBERBROREFSESFNAAEBEES - SN, R 118511688 Tt & 1184,997 87T (2023F « KE#EE
MRENEEERD 1EIN1188,31688 Ttk 1188,25183T7T) ° WO J5LA2023 FFHI[A —EEHLT o
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36 Financial Risk Management (continved)
LRIEMERE »

(f) Fair Values
AREE

.
I.

Financial instruments carried at fair value

BOAEETIRNEMTIA

The fair values of listed equity securities, debt securities and investment funds are based on quoted market bid prices
at the end of the reporting period.

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s and the University’s financial instruments measured at the
end of the reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in
HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement. The level into which a fair value measurement is classified is determined with
reference to the observability and significance of the inputs used in the valuation technique as follows:

Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level 1 inputs, i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities at the measurement date

Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2 inputs, i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and not
using significant unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market data are
not available

Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using significant unobservable inputs
TR  EEBHFMREESNAABERBRBEMANEERRNTISEEABMAIE °

TERBEIBEMBREL I F 13K/ AR EETE/MAEN=ERAAREER  JIHAPERERENEHT
ARGEERRNAAEE 2R BEFENLHEZERELGENBBE L ABERENERERETE - BAER
LI

F1RMEE — AREERE 1RBINBURRE - RGE B RRM ST HRNEENKR ENRERABRNRE

F2RMAE — ARBENAE2RFNBIBERGTE - IREFTEE 1RO BRINBELRNMER T AIBERINE
2RIE - TABRINEBRI TS RERENIE

EIWMHE — ARBEATIBRINEREERTE
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36 Financial Risk Management (continved)
LRIEMERE »

(f) Fair Values (continued)
DREE

i.  Financial instruments carried at fair value (continued)

BAAEBEEIIRNESHIA (&)
The Group KB %8

2024 2023
(In thousands of Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Hong Kong dollars) (K F#Exat) ERE E2 EXE ot F1R F2/ E3M Rk
Equity Securities 10 & FH 1,044,604 — 29,285 1,073,889 1,245,992 — 18,153 1,264,145
Debt Securities BERES 1,290,358 659,115 — 1,949,473 1,506,832 892,385 — 2,399,217
Derivative Financial T
Instruments ST EMD
Receivables e IR — 65,747 — 65,747 — 65,884 — 65,884
Investment Funds REES 2,850,708 301,009 — 3,151,717 4,066,927 — — 4,066,927
Derivative Financial PTHE
Instruments SHMTAED
Payables FERTRUR — (33,569) — (33,569) —  (56,242) — (56,242)
Other Investments Hiig & — — 93,212 93,212 — — 91,066 91,066
5,185,670 992,302 122,497 6,300,469 6,819,751 902,027 109,219 7,830,997
The University X2
2024 2023
(In thousands of Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Hong Kong dollars) (K FEat) ERE E2 ExE k] F1R F2M ERE Rk
Equity Securities R0 FEH 1,044,297 — 5,626 1,049,923 1,245,297 — 5,745 1,251,042
Debt Securities BEHES 1,290,358 659,115 — 1,949,473 1,506,832 892,385 — 2,399,217
Derivative Financial PTHE
Instruments SRIED
Receivables e IR — 65,747 — 65,747 — 65,884 — 65,884
Investment Funds BEES 2,850,708 301,009 — 3,151,717 4,066,927 — — 4,066,927
Derivative Financial PTE
Instruments SR TAEMD
Payables e 5RE — (33,569) — (33,569) —  (56,242) — (56,242)

5,185,363 992,302 5,626 6,183,291 6,819,056 902,027 5,745 7,726,828

During the years 2023 and 2024, there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers into or out of
Level 3. The Group’s and the University's policy are to recognise transfer between levels of fair value hierarchy as at
the end of the reporting period in which they occur.

R2023F R2024FFR  RERBLRAPHNEMTAREGER 1 REFE 2R HER  EE3RTFAREL - X
BEERASHNBRENEENRABRACEENELABERBRS 2E -
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36 Financial Risk Management (continved)
LRIEMERE »

Fair Values (continued)
DAEE B

()

.
I.

Financial instruments carried at fair value (continued)

BOABEIIRNEMTIA (8)

Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 2 fair value measurements

F2WMAABEFEMAZEELT ZRBABR

The fair value of fixed-income securities in Level 2 is mainly determined by prices for identical or similar assets in
over-the-counter markets that are not active.

The fair value of foreign exchange forward contracts is either marked to market using listed market prices or by
discounting the contractual forward price and deducting the current spot rate.

The fair value of interest rate swaps is the estimated amount that the Group and the University would receive or pay to
terminate the swap at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the current interest rates and the current
creditworthiness of the swap counterparties.

The fair value of the unlisted investment funds in Level 2 is determined by reference to the prices at the reporting date
provided by the investment managers and have been translated using the exchange rates at the end of the reporting
period where appropriate.

F2RETFTWARBFHNRAABERIFEREINIZTEILERSIEERNEEEBRETE
ERINES N 2 AARBERTEREUTEHERSRITIRA QERER LN AVHEXRGHE

PRI AR MERASEERASEREE AR RSN S et 8 - RIS B BRI A A5 49
HFHIEE -

BRE2HEEMBREESNAARBENSERELEMBEHNRE D ZERMETE - UEAREHRZEXHTE -
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36 Financial Risk Management (continved)
LRIEMERE »

Fair Values (continued)
RAEE )

()

Financial instruments carried at fair value (continued)

BOABEIRNEMTIA (8)

Information about fair value measurements of Level 3:
FEIRAABENTENER :

The fair value of investment in Institutional Entities and unlisted equity securities is determined based on investment costs
or recent financing after considering the business nature, stage of development, business and financial performance
of the investees as well as availability of information provided by the management. The significant unobservable input
includes the adjustment to investment cost or recent financing. The fair value measurement is positively correlated to
the investment cost or recent financing.

The fair value of other investments is determined based on the investment cost or probability weighted expected return
method with consideration of different scenarios in exercising the Simple Agreement for Future Equity (“SAFE"). The
significant unobservable inputs include the adjustment to investment cost or expected payoff and the probability of
each scenario. The fair value measurement is positively correlated to the probability of a qualified equity financing
scenario.

BRENBBERBMIFLMRDESNAABEIRERERAIIHRERN - FEERRRENNEHLE - &
RER  RERMBERAUAREREASREENMET - EXTABERHABRBEHREXNASIHIRENH
o RRBEFEERERASIHRE 2 EHR -

HA B R A BERBRE XA R IEFERU X - WEBITEARRIMERL E i ([SAFE]) WA RIS E
E o BEATABRB A NEREHRENARFARRRENABRUALSRBIEANHER - 2ABEFEESRBRERES
REBRZ LR -

The movement during the period in the balance of Level 3 fair values measurements is as follows:

EFEIRANBENGHEHANESNAEWT

The Group REEE The University X2

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (A FETat) 2024 2023 2024 2023
Equity securities: RPES
Balance at the Beginning of F4

the Year 5323 109,219 47,522 5,745 6,248
Payment for purchases NN 34,960 62,500 — —
Unrealised (Losses)/Gains for the Year AFEARER (BX) Mz (20,208) 197 (119) (503)
Transfers =i — — — —
Disposal k== (1,474) (1,000) — —
Balance at the End of the Year FRER 122,497 109,219 5,626 5,745

Fair values of financial instruments carried at other than fair value

FEQLAEEIIRNEMTA

The carrying amount of financial instruments carried at amortised cost was not materially different from their respective
fair values as at 30 June 2024 and 2023.

RE AR TIEN SR T ANIEE SR E N 2024F 2 2023F6 A0 2 AR BETEE AZER] -

110  City University of Hong Kong &3 m A



Notes to the Financial Statements Bf ##R &K K5

37 Accounting Estimates and Judgements
B et 4h 5T 3 H R

The Group’s and the University’s property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line method over their
estimated useful lives, after taking into account their estimated residual value. The Group and the University determine
the estimated useful lives and residual values of the assets based on historical actual usage experience, maintenance and
replacement policy. Management reviews the useful lives of assets annually, and if expectations are significantly different
from previous estimates of useful economic lives, the useful lives and, therefore, the depreciation rate for the future periods
will be adjusted accordingly.

The Group and the University review their property, plant and equipment, intangible assets with finite useful lives,
investments in subsidiaries and interest in a joint venture for indications of impairment at the end of each reporting period
according to accounting policies set out in note 1(j)(ii). Property, plant and equipment, intangible assets with finite useful
lives, investments in subsidiaries and interest in the joint venture are reviewed for impairment at each reporting date or
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the assets exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of the fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In determining the
value in use, expected cash flows generated by the asset are discounted to their present value, which requires significant
judgement relating to the revenue forecasts, future inflation and long-term growth rates. However, any change in the
assumptions adopted in the cash flow forecasts would increase or decrease the provision for impairment loss and affect the
Group’s and the University’s financial results and financial position. For goodwill and intangible assets that have indefinite
useful lives, the recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or not there is any indication of impairment.

Note 36 contains information about the assumptions and their risk relating to financial instruments.

REEBERABNNE  #EMNREBEEEEFAERFRAEEEABRERERENE - APEEBIABKEAETE
BRERZER  #ELRERERMGEFTHEENAERFR BT REMFELHE - ERERFRANEENRFER  1IRMIE
e EEHRZE B RN AT AT AFRMGE - RIATAFRAS KRN ER B R — % -

RERE L ABESESERRBREN T 1)) FHETHR B ERE - BBEMRE  AERYRNELEE  WEB
AARAEAREENRARGEEBAENR - E8EAE AEMEHRRFEER  NEENKRESRRNE AR
LR - RE - HEk&E AEABRNELEE MBARKRERSEARERSIERERY - BEENAWNEEE
FERAABERBEXNAREREENRSE - £EEEREEN  EEETNRPRSREREEREYR  EFE
HWATER - RBEWRMEIIEREZELERHEG - B2 - RERETRATRANBRROEM LA SIE M=o D>
MERBEEE  YEEAREBMASNXE MY BN - LAEEAMROBMERENEENERE LA LTRBED
R EANEeHEGFHSELAE -

ftaE 36 5| E B RS R T AR RRAMERNER -
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Possible Impact of Amendments, New Standards and Interpretations Issued
but Not Yet Effective for the Year Ended 30 June 2024
BZ2024F6 30 LFECHMEBERENMNEE - MTERRBETHELENTE

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has issued a number of new or amended standards, which
are not yet effective for the year ended 30 June 2024 and which have not been adopted in these financial statements. These
developments include the following which may be relevant to the Group and the University:

Effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of financial statements: Classification 1 January 2024
of liabilities as current or non-current

BEAMBRIELR  BESMOSBEMBUEN REFTER - ZEHATERNBE2024F6 A30 H IEFENIARE
M AR A G HRERRA - Eh BRI ASRE L RBEEN THI%ER
RT3 B MRERBABKEN
B HEEXK
(EEEHERDE 1R ZERT MBHMENE2H : RBEIERABNDE 20241 A1 8

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the impact of these developments is expected to be in the
period of initial application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the
Group's and the University’s financial statements.

AREERBRFIEZSEREVRERAROTE  RABREMA  EAZFLENTGHRBEREB NS 2 HHHREE
RERTE
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